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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into an amendment to a sole source agreement with
Granite Pathways, c/o Fedcap, Vendor ID# 228900-B001, 10 Ferry Street, Suite #319, Concord, NH
03301, to continue Regional Access Point Services that assist individuals with substance use disorders
obtain services by increasing the price limitation by $419,924 from $2,098,587 to $2,518,511 and
changing the completion date from June 30, 2018 to December 31, 2018, effective July 1, 2018 or
upon Governor and Executive Council approval.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on July 13, 2016 (ltem
#6C) and subsequently amended on June 21, 2017 (ltem #41), December 20, 2017 (ltem #5G),
January 24, 2018 (Late item #C), and February 21, 2018 (ltem #12B). 79.16% Federal Funds, 13.55%
General Funds and 7.28% Other Funds.

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget Increasef (Decrease) | Modified Budget

Contracts for

Prog Svc $1,200,000 50 $1,200,000

2017 102-500734

Subtotal $1,200,000 30 $1,200,000

05-95-92-920510-3384 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93.959

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget Increase/ (Decrease) | Maodified Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500734 Prog Svc $506,700 30 $506,700
Subtotal $506,700 $0 $506,700
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05-95-92-920510-2559 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, OPIOID STR
GRANT 100% Federal Funds FAIN TI080246 CFDA 93.788

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget | Increase/ (Decrease) | Modified Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500734 Prog Svc $ 391,887 $0 $ 391,887
Contracts for ;
2019 102-5007 31 Program Sve 0 $236,424 . $236,424
Subtotal $391,887 $236.424 $628,311

05-95-92-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS Funds 100% Other Funds

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget increase/ (Decrease) | Modified Budget
Contracts for
2019 102-500734 Prog Svc 0 $183,500 $183,500
Subtotal $0 $183,500 $183,500
Total $2,098,587 $419,924 $2,518,511
EXPLANATION

The original contract was one (1) of three (3) sole source contracts for services. The contracts
were sole source because it was necessary to implement services as quickly as possible in order to
meet the immediate demand for services. Vendors were chosen based on their capacity to implement
Regional Access Point Services statewide in a highly efficient manner. From October 2017 through
March 2018, 920 individuals accessed these services. The Department has consolidated Regional
Access Point Services into a single contract following notification of service termination by
Southwestern Community Services and the other contractor being placed into receivership due to
financial concerns. To ensure continuity of care and that there was no interruption of services, Granite
Pathways began taking on services in the Manchester and Keene areas previously covered by other
contractors in early January 2018. Client feedback solicited from Granite Pathways indicates that the
Regional Access Point Services made the process significantly easier for them and that the support
provided to them during the process was invaluable. This amendment includes additional minimum
performance measures for the vendor to achieve that include the following:

. Increase referral of individuals with QUD to MAT services, as measured by 80% of individuals
receiving a RAPs referral then being referred to MAT, when the clinical evaluation includes MAT
as a recommended service,

. Increase the number of individuals with OUD accessing MAT, as measured by 30% of
individuals with OUD receiving MAT services,
. Increase the number of individuals with OUD who receive a clinical evaluation for appropriate

level of care in a timely fashion, as measured by 80% of individuals receiving an evaluation
within five (5) business days and,

. Increase the number of individuals with OUD accessing appropriate level of care in a timely
fashion, as measured by 40% of RAPs clients accessing treatment within five (5) business days

This amendment allows the Contractor to continue providing Regional Access Point Services
statewide. In addition, to support the Safe Stations initiative, Regional Access Point Services in the
Greater Manchester Public Health Region will have extended hours to include 8:00 am to 11:00 pm,
Monday through Friday, and 11:00 am to 11:00 pm, Saturday and Sunday. Services include, but are
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not limited to screening clients for substance use disorders, utilizing evaluations to recommend a leve!
of treatment or recovery support services, referring clients to providers for treatment services or
recovery support services and assisting them with accessing these services, enrolling clients with third
party payers, case management, and crisis support.

The attached contract includes language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to
two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The contract has already been
renewed for one (1) year. Upon approval of this additional six (6) months of renewal, there will be six
(68) months of renewal remaining.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access Point
Services may not be available. The inability to access these services may negatively |mpact an
individual’s ability to achieve and/or maintain recovery from substance use dlsorders

Areas served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 79.16% Federal Funds From CFDA #83.8958 FAIN TI010035 U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse, Substance Abuse
Block Grant SABG and CFDA #83.788 FAIN T1080246 U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Opicid STR Grant, 7.28%
Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds and 13.55% General Funds..

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available, General Funds wiill
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
GO .ﬁav

- Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:

(Uﬂ Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #5 to the
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services Contract

This 5™ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services Contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #5") dated this 6th day of March, 2018, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State” or "Department") and Granite Pathways, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a
corporation with a place of business at c/o Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc., 10 Ferry Street, Suite
#319, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13, 2016 (Item #6C) and subsequently amended on June 21, 2017 (ltem #41), December 20,
2017 (ltem #5G), January 24, 2018 (Late ltem #C), and February 21, 2018 (ltem #12B) the Contractor
agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as
amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, modify the scope, and increase the
price limitation;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: .

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
December 31, 2018

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$2,518,511.

3. Delete Exhibit A ~Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2, Services to be provided,
Subsection 2.4, Paragraph 2.4.1, and replace as follows:

2.4.1. Provision of RAP services for the Manchester Safe Stations program:
2.4.1.1. Monday through Friday from 8:00 am through 11:00 pm.
2.4.1.2. Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays from 11:00 am through 11:00 pm.

4. Add to Exhibit A-Amendment #2, Section 4, Minimum Performance Measures, Subsections 4.2
and 4.3 as follows:

4.2 The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking access to services for OUD receive access
to Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) by achieving the following objectives:

4.2.1 Obijective 1: Increase referral of individuals with OUD to MAT services, as measured
by 80% of individuals receiving a RAPs referral then being referred to MAT, when
the clinical evaluation includes MAT as a recommended service, as reported by the

Granite Pathways Amendment #5
§8-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

Contractor.

4.2.2 Objective 2: Increase the number of individuals with OUD accessing MAT, as
measured by 30% of individuals with OQUD receiving MAT services, as reported by
the Contractor.

4.3 The Contractor shall ensure wait times for treatment services for individuals with OUD will
decrease by achieving the following objectives:

4.3.1 Objective 1: Increase the number of individuals with OUD who receive a clinical
evaluation for appropriate level of care in a timely fashion, as measured by 80% of
individuals receiving an evaluation within five (5) business days, as reported by the
Contractor.

4.3.2 Objective 2: Increase the number of individuals with OUD accessing appropriate
level of care in a timely fashion, as measured by 40% of RAPs clients accessing
treatment within five (5) business days, as reported by the Contractor.

5. Add Exhibit B-3.

The rest of this page left intentionally blank.

Granite Pathways Amendment #5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

S/ 1%

Date

Granite Pathways

5/;2;//8 ' L/
Znot

Date Name: K enpneth Bre

Title: 6&1-@\'&\ Cot-Ln?e,|

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of , County of on_ S ) 22 )lh’ , before the
undersigned officerpersonally appeared the perébn identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

e Asino—

Signature-6f Notapy Pblic or Justice of the Peace

Amo, Reisnar, Nobava Sl i
Name and{itle of Notary or Just{$e of the Peace

ilin S

Py ey, et Sl - e . o
AMY REISNER g

Notary Public - State of New York
NO. 01RE6215281

Granite Pathways Amendment #5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/S| doalin
Date ?iatllr;e. @{i\;&{#%u b

[ hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
®
Granite Pathways Amendment #5

55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page 4 of 4



Substance Lse Disorder - Regional Access Point Services Exhibit B-3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Substance Use Disorder - Reglenal Access Pofnt Services

Budget Request for: Granite Pathways
Budget Perlod: 6-Month Budget [July 1, 2018 - December 31, 2013)
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE PATHWAYS is
a New Hampshire Nooprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. I further certify that
all fees and documents required hy the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concemed.

Business [D: 653581

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 18th day of May A.D. 2017.

Gk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
1, \.k) 4 u awm (Q\Q&Q}f\' , do hereby certify that:

{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Q m&\& 1 0“\'\;\\LLCL\J§ .
(Agency Name) v

2, The following is a true copy of the resclution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on Q-J atol \ La .
" (Date)

RESOLVED: That the C—jm L C {MJ\AQQ'
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in fult force and effect as of

the_o2) day of . _,201%
{Date Amendment Sjgned)

4, ég W ﬂg;_Hg S (e Zﬁbﬂ'@ is the duly elected G -e_hj_\r‘cd QG W YASQL .
(Name of Confract Signatory) (Titie of Contract Signatory)

Y7/

YSignature of the Elected Officer)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of \;_\:'\\Sg b aAvon ,5\{\ .
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 SN day of m&_ur 20 Lg,

By MO \\\\CL\N\(Q\ \\(&QX\ .

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: Q*— ‘7-—&. l

P?l?:NNA KEEFE
- Nohly- lic - New Hampshire R
My Commission Expires September 7, 2021

July 1,2005

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Ceriificate of Vote Without Seal
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ACCRD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE eare ooy

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPQON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: ¥ tho certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
H SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditlons of the policy, terain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
NFP Property & Casualty Services, Inc.
45 Executive Drive

Plainview, NY 11803

i
c 'IE'.?CT

| ta/c, ney

| PN, ey (516) 327-2700 [ R v
. fibgghss- - -

. INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC B
o ' wsurer A - Berkshire Hathaway $pecialty Insurance Company'22276
—— Y T
INSURED Granita Path @uﬂ a:Technology Insurance Co., Inc. _ 42376 |
ranite Pathways, Int. ) ,
Attn: Karen Wegmann }——'"“RER & — ]
€32 Third Avenue - 6th ficor  INSURERD : —_— .
New York, NY 10017 INSURERE : . . i
| tNSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMEER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PCLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWY HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TG ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAIO CLAIMS.

DESCRIF’T!ON OF OPERATIONS below

: i EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT * §
I

g TYPE DF INSURANCE ﬁm POLICY NUMBER " POUICYEFF | POLCYEXP | LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | EACH OCCURRENGE i 1,600,000
| CLamsHADE | X | OCCUR | ! 1475PK 25564203 0973012017 | 09/30/2018 | PAMAGEIORENTED © T 1,000,000
__'__ ——— - . ] ‘ { MEDEXP {Anyone person} . $ 20,000
S — | | PERSONAL & ADVINJURY 1§ 1,000,000
- GENL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER; ! | | GENERA AGGREGATE ____§ 3,000,000
__teouer 3G [% 1o i : | IrPRODUCTS-CGMPIOF' AcE s, 3,000,000
_OTHER: | i : s
A auToMoBILE LIABIUTY P ! COMBINED SINGLE LMIT 1,000,000
TX ¢ ANy aUTO .| 47Rws14008203 09/30/2017 | 09/30/2018 | oDty INURY (Per person) . §__
T owneD T §EHEDULED i ' i——_:' ] —
__ ' AUTOSONLY as . gggg_g qu[;h (Pot sccitery) 3
_x_§ s omy 11X AB‘P(-J% NE l i_(P_er ] ‘s _
: ]
ik i s
A X | uupReLLA Lua Eoccun P | o e s 25,000,000
* EXCESS LIAB | CLAMS-MADE i IATSUM148033D3 09[30!2017 09/20/2018 [ | AGGREGATE . s 25,000,000
ioep | Xipevenmons 10,0000 : 8
B WORKERS COMPENSATICN I ' | X PER GTH-
+AND EMFLOTERS LIABLLITY | . : WIE  CER . ]
| mur rcemeromeamemExecune [ ;‘": F {Twcasooest 12H1201T 12112018, "o pcomeny 'y 1:000.000
&rsﬁgsmss?e XCLUDED N !Nr l : |_El DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, § 1,000,000
1M yes, descibe un [ . i 7T 1,000,000

. i

l

Evidence of Inaurance

DESCRIPTION OF CPERATIONS / LOCATIONS ! VEMICLES (ACORD t0t, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be anached ¥ more space iy required}

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire,

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NY 03201

AC CORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

A8 lutSu

ACORD 25 {2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al

The ACORD name and logo are reglsterad marks of ACORD

I rights reserved.



fMission Statement

Granite Pathways works to empower and support individuals and families effected by mental heakth
issues and substance use disorders, Through a peer based recovery framework, we provide services and
create community culture to help individuals and famifies pursue their goals for improved heaith and
wellness, social connectedness, meaningful work, and opportunities for volunteerism, employment, and
education.
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Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
September 30, 2016 and 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
FEDCAP Rehabilitation Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP Rehabilitation Services, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (collectively, “FEDCAP”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated stztements of activities and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditos considers internal control relevant to FEDCAP’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financizal statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes eveluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Guard Thowstn (LD
U3 i o & Grant Thcrmion iniarmatoral Lt



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of FEDCAP Rehabilitation Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2016 and 2015,
and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Supplementary information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financia] statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures. These additional
procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial siatements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Chant Dhnaitr. 20

New York, New York
March 6, 2017



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

_ As of Septomber 30, 2016 and 2016
ASSETS 2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 10,969,236 $ 12,211,556

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

approximately (32,080,000 in 2016 and $2,619,000 in 2015)
Contributions receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible contributions
of approximately $115,000 in 2016 and 2015)

Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets

LONG-TERM ASSETS
Investments
Fixed assets, net
Arl objects
Beneficial interest in remainder trusts
Other assets '

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues
Advance from government agency
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Obligations under capital leases
Long-term det®, net of current portion
Revolving loans
Other linbilitics

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assetls

33,441,617 29,746,474
1,041,133 2,333,225
414,939 673,818
2,826,486 2,322,433
43,693,411 47,287,506
17,345,013 16,926,806
75,855,170 76,998,952
21,750 21,750
575,912 693,049
575,020 540,033
54,372,925 95,180,590
$ 143,066336 § 142,468,096

$ 26530000 § 27,978,124
1,156,919 1,082,588

- 1,800,600

754,995 837,289
28,441,914 31,698,001
36,672,420 36,302,491
23,943,320 24,599,343
16,486,698 12,466,630
2,191,849 1,970,348
107,736,201 107,536,813
33,176,435 32,171,763
1,568,272 2,175,092
584,428 584,428
35,330,135 34,931,283

§ 143,066,336 § 142,468,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolldateqd Statements of Activities
For the years ended Saptember 30, 2018 and 2018

uis 18
Temparwrily Prrmamexdly Trmparurdy Termanently
Rherestrie trd Reerrirued Elextriqwd Tutad Unrestriced Eestricted Restricted Tt
REVENUES
Contact svices wnd products 3 wNLIN § - H - $ 10231238 3 102251831 8 - H - § 1or29),831
Rehabilitation wed vocsional prograns 120,435,112 . . 120,436,118 61251,287 - . 67,291,207
Conrilnions sd Grasty 1416116 140,000 . 1,956,316 1510917 1755,608 - 3,366,605
Inherry eomiritution 102390 - . 201380 [@7,745) 213,360 101,660 61,280
Irtevest incrwne 124717 - - 134717 3430 - . 34,52)
MEscolarenia hrvenue 1,797383 - . 1,797.38) 519012 - - 519312
He1 ameeng releascd from retricona 45270 £45.020) - = 5T2.501 1572, 503) - =
Tolal nevenes 229034 862 {605 130) - 228,429,041 171,966,633 1,418,548 501,660 1D NI
\
EXPENSES
Frogrkia services:
Conrmt =vices and producis 90,536,5%4 - . 90,986,554 18,034,002 . - B03,08
Rehatwtizalion wd vocutional progt 105,142 333 - - 109,862 539 63470018 . - 3470318
196,149,093 - . 154,849 093 151,504,336 - - 131,304,338
Sopparting Sarvice:
Moagremens and gooer) 29.504,519 - - 29.504 319 2t 420448 - - 21,400,445
Deveopicat 1,676,578 - - 1,6%.473 T, - - TS
31,101,097 - - 31,191,087 22,203,241 - - 22,200,241
Tolal expenses 228,070,100 - - 213,030,190 AT, 07,897 - - 170, W07,597
Chanps in net moscty 1,004 572 (503,420) - was {3, 10,584} 1,411,448 50,650 179,241
Kol msety w beginping of you 32,171,763 217509 Sa4.420 34931283 31912737 1558 82,753 34,792,042
Net xsyets of @od of year 3 3743 0§ hS60IT2 3 M8 5 35330035 0§ JLIT1743 0§ 2ATS00r 3 M4 3 34gNom

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financiol siatertents.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the yeara anded September 30, 2016 and 2015

2016 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ 398852 179,241
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities: .
Depreciation and amortization 3,918260 3,318,960
Bad debt provision (recovery) 1,046,376 (206,665}
Accrued interest on capital [ease obligations - 176,345
Inherent contribution (202,380} (463,280}
Unrealized gain on investrnents ) {129,415} -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,741,245) {8,316,615)
Contribution receivable 1,292,092 {1,286,010)
Inventories 258,879 (623,472)
Prepaid expenses and other assets {(527,750) (1,106,043)
Beneficial interest in remainder trust 152,897 {3.3717)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,455,478} 12,638,424
Deferred revenue : | 74331 106,364
Other liabilities 221,501 669,034
Net cash provided by operating activities 306,920 5,082,906
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments 6,000,000 -
Purchase of investments (6,283,333) (34,009
Cash received in acquisition 10,202 812,974
Capital expenditurcs (2,627,789} (5,004,549)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,900,920) (4,225,584)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in advance from government agency {1,800,000) (829,782)
Change in revolving loans . 4,020,068 5111844
Repayment of long-term debt (738,317) (382,453)
Repayment of capital lease obligations _(130,071) {5,976
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,351,680 3,893,633
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,242,320} 4,750,955
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 12,211,556 7.460,601
End of year § 10,969,236 $ 12,211,556
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash interest paid during the year $ 1,079,151 $ 1,078,854
Fixed assets acquired with capital leages s - S 66,092

The accompanying notes dare an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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M FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2016 and 2015 '

1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc. (“FRS") is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under
the laws of New York State. FRS is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities and other work-related disadvantages who face significant barriers to employment. FRS’s goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream.

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions of FRS. The primary customers in these divisions are Federal, and New York State and City
agencies and certified home health agencies, that contract with FRS for services.

As part of FRS’s rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessments, and vocational counseling. Afier evaluation, FRS offers
training in mail clerk/messenger services, building/custodial services, culinary arts/food services, data
entry, office skills, document imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then secks to

o employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS’s rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton LofY, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

On July 1, 2011, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Wildcat Services Corporation (“Wildcat”),
a nonprofit entity located in New York City that provides employment training, jobs placement and
“supportive employment” opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

On October 1, 2012, FRS acquired and became the sole member of ReServe Elder Service, Inc.
(“ReServe™), a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age

55+ with organizations that need their expertise. ReServe provides direct services, administrative support,
and capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, ard public agencies.

On October 1, 2013, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Community Workshops, Inc. (d/b/a
Community Work Services) (“CWS”), a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, Massachusetts, whose
mission is to help people who have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency
through job training, placement, and support services.

On September 1, 2015, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Easter Seals New York, Inc.
(“ESNY™), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide program and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.

On May 1, 2016, ESNY received a contribution in the form of a Red Mango franchise, incorporated as

1184 Deer Park Ave., Inc. (*1184"™). 1184 is currently managed as a for profit corporation, and operates as
a social enterprise which includes a training center and employment opportunities for veterans.

-G~



™ FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Saptember 30, 2016 and 2015

On May 1, 2016, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Granite Pathways, Inc, (“GP"), a nonprofit
entity whose mission is to provide services to empawer and support adults with mental illness to pursue
their personal goals through education, employient, stable housing, and meaningful relationships.

On September 1, 2016, FRS acquired and became the sole member of Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
(“ESRI™), a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities
or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work ard play in their
communities.

Collectively, FRS, Wildcat, ReServe, CWS, ESNY, 1184, GP and ESR] are referred to as “FEDCAP.”
2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (*US GAAP™) using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, FEDCAP’s consolidated financial statements distinguish between unrestricted, temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted net assets and changes in net assets as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - consist of all funds which are expendable, at the discretion of FEDCAP's
management and Board of Directors, for carrying on daily operations. These funds have neither been
restricted by doncrs nor set aside for any specific purpose,

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - net assets that have been limited by donor-imposed stipulations
that either expire with the passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by the actions of FEDCAP

pursuant to those stipulations.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that require
resources to be maintained as funds of a permanent duration.

Cash Equivalents

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months o less at the date of
purchase, including investments in shori-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be

cash equivalents,

Contribution snd Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such

assets is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and
contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as either permanently
restricted if FEDCAP is required to maintain the contribution permanently or temporarily restricted if the
stipulation limits the use of the contribution to specific purposes or a time period. Donor restrictions that
are received and met in the same fiscal yesr are recorded as unrestricted contributions. Otherwise, once
stipulated time restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets
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™ FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Septamber 30, 2016 and 2016

are reclassified to unrestricted net assets as “net assets released from restrictions™ in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities,

Revenue from grants and contracts is recognized when earned, that is, generally es related costs are incurred
or the milestone is achieved under the grant or contract.

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract’s term for those with fixed rates. For
performance-based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when expenditures have been incurred
or services have been performed in compliance with the respective contracts. FEDCAP elso generates
revenue from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Deferred revenue represents cash received in advance of services and will be recognized as the services are
performed. Deferred revenue amounted to $1,156,319 and $1,082,588 as of September 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The carrying value of contributions and accounts receivable are reduced by an appropriate allowance

- for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value. FEDCAP determines its
allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time receivables are past due,
FEDCAP’s previous loss history, the donor’s current ability to pay its obligation, and the condition of
the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding ionger then the payment terms
are ¢onsidered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivables when they become uncollectible, and
payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income in the period received.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $1,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year are
carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from 3 to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
esset lives are capitalized; normel maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited,

Commissions

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide
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A FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Ssptember 30, 2016 and 2015

for commissions to be paid to these organizations in the range of 0.85% to 4% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating to these contracts amounted to $1,728,663 and $1,797,201 for the years ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is included within contract services and products expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates

and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Finenciz] Instruments

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities approximates their carrying value due to their short-term maturities. The fair value of long-
term debt approximates carrying value based on current interest rates for similar instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair velue hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances.

Thke hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the transparency of inputs as follows:

Level 1- Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market.

Level 2- Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are cither directly or
indirectly observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities include
investments for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments
that are fair valued using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.



M FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2016 and 2015

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These
securities are measured using management's best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into
the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management
judgment or estimation.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input thatis
significant to the fair value measuremnent. However, the determination of what constitutes “observable”
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financtal
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the insttument and does not
necessarily correspend to FEDCAP’s perceived risk of that instrument. ’

Beneficial Interest in Remainder Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts® term. Upon termination of the frusts,
FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trusts, Trusts are recorded as increases to net assets at

the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future payments to be made under the
specific terms of the trusts, At September 30, 2016 and 2015, FEDCAP's interest in these trusts is reflected
at fair value in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and is classified as Level 3
within the fair value hierarchy.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison of
the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value, .

Tax-Exempt Status

FRS, Wildcat, ReServe, CWS, ESNY, 1184, GP, and ESRI and follow guidance that clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in tax  positions taken or expecied to be taken in a tax return, including issues
relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This guidance provides that the tax effects
from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial statements if the position is “more-
likely-than-not" to be sustained if the position were 10 be challenged by a taxing authority. The assessment
of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position, without regard to the likelihood
that the tax position may be challenged.

FRS, Wildcat, ReServe, CWS, ESNY, GP and ESRI are exempt from federal income tax under IRC
section 501(c)(3), though they are subject to tax on income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose,
unless that income is otherwise excluded by the Code. These organizations have processes presently in
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Saptember 30, 2016 and 2015

place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt status; to identify and report vnrelated income; to
determine their filing and tax obligations in jurisdictons for which they have nexus; and to identify and
evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions. FRS, Wildcat ReServe, CWS, ESNY, GP and
ESRI have determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements.

1184, a for-profit corporationt, commenced business operations in May of 2016; the organization has not
calculated a tax provision as the projected tax liability is immaterial from a financial statement perspective.
In addition, 1184 has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recogmition
or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2015 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2016
presentation. Such reclassifications did not change total assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses or changes in
net assets as previously reflected in the 2015 consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2016 and 2015, contributions receivable, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts,
consisted of the following:

2016 2015
Amounts due within one year $ 656,133 $ 1,418,225
Amounts due in one to five years 500,000 1,030,000

1,156,133 2,448,225
Less: allowance for uncollectible receivables (115,000 (115,000)

3 1,041,133 $ 2333225

Approximately 85% and 65%of the contributions receivable (gross) are due from one donor at
September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30:

2016 2018
Money market funds $ 10,492,741 $ 16,219,963
Mumal funds 6,852,332 706,843

$ 17,345,073 $ 16,926,806

FEDCAP’s mutual fund investments are classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP’s
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under US GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.
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A FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notos to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2016 and 2015

5. INVENTORIES

Inventones consisted of the foliowing at September 30:

2016 2015
Inventories:
Raw materials _ $ 382,137  § 647,633
Work-in-process and finished goods 122,802 116,185
Reserve {90,000) {90,000)

$ 414939 § 6733818

6. FIXED ASSETS, NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:

2016 2015
Fixed assets:
Land $ 1,017,809 § 1,229,105
Building improvements 498,951 787,308
Buildings 33,280,420 32,612,541
Capital lease - building 35,918,547 35,918,547
Furniture, fixtures and computer systems B 9,023,535 7,206,700
Leasehold improvements 6,357,782 5,804,171
86,097,044 83,558,372
Less: accumulated depreciation (10,241,874) (6,559,420)

§ 75,855,170 § 76,998,952

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 was $3,918,260
and $3,318,960, respectively.

7. CAPITAL LEASES

In May of 2014, FRS entered into a condominium leasehold agreement in a building located at 205 East
42nd Street in New York City for 64,303 square feet of space consisting of the entire second and third floor
and a portion of the gronnd floor. FRS began occupying the space in December 2014 and the agreement
expires in fiscal 2043, The interest rate is fixed at 4.20%.

FRS accounted for this agreement as a capital lease, and as such, the related cost of $35,918,547,
representing the present value of the total future minimum lease payments due at the inception of

the agreement, is included within “Fixed assets, net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position at September 30, 2016 and 2015. FRS occupied the condominium in December 2014
and recorded depreciation expense of $1,238,571 and $1,032,142 for fiscal 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The outstanding principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, is $36,564,980 and
$36,664,281, respectively.
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N FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements
Septembar 30, 2046 and 2015

During fiscal 2015, FRS obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $22,074, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $6,662 and $2,207, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, is $15,452 and $19,866, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, CWS obtained financing pursuant to a capita! lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $44,018, principal and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015, accumulated
depreciation associated with this lease agreement is $12,893 and $2,749, respectively. The outstanding
principal balance on the lease as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, is $31,125 and $40,019, respectively.
The maturity date is March 31, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 6.73%.

During fiscal 2015, ESNY obtained financing pursuant to a capital lease to finance vehicles in the amount
of $80,785, principat and interest are paid monthly. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015, the accurnulated
depreciation balance was $19,922 and $2,749, respectively. The outstanding principal balance on the lease
as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, was $60,863 and $78,325, respectively. The maturity date is June 30,
2020 and the interest mate is fixed at 6.97%.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2016:

Year Ending September 30,
2017 $ 1663775
2018 1,663,775
2019 1,663,775
2020 1,892,045
2021 . 1,937,699
Thereafter 56,479,274
Total minimum lease payments 65,300,343
Less: Amount representing interest (28,627,923)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 36,672,420

8. REVOLVING LOANS

Isrze] Discount Bank of New York

FRS entered into a revolving loan agreement with Israel Discount Bank of New York (“IDB™) to finance
working capilal needs with an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $15,000,000. The line was
collateralized by FRS’s accounts receivable and matured on December 10, 2014. On December 10, 2014,
FRS renewed the revolving loan agreement. On April 21, 20186, the revolving loan agreement was amended
to mature on April 21, 2018. The interest rate for the revolving loan agreement is the Prime Rate. As

of September 30, 2016 and 2015, FEDCAP had borrowings on this line of credit of $13,453,272 and
$9,953,273, respectively, at an interest rate of 3.50% and 3.25%, respectively.

-13-



FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants
September 30, 2016 and 2015

RBS Citizens Bank, N.A.

On September 1, 2015, ESNY replaced its line of credit with RBS Citizens Bank, N.A with a $3,500,000
revolving line of credit with FRS as the co-borrower after the transfer of sole membership to FRS (refer to
Note 16). The line of credit’s original maturity date of February 28, 2016 was extended on December 15,
2016 to mature on December 15, 2018 and the line was decreased to $3,000,000. As part of the line of
credit agreement between ESNY and RBS, FEDCAP must maintain a minimum balance with RBS of
$500,000, which is included within cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated statements
of financial position at September 30, 2016 and 2015. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015, ESNY had
borrowings on this line of credit of $3,033,426 and $2,513,357 at an interest rate of 2.77% and 2.45%,
respectively.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payzable

In conjunction with leasing space for a program operated in the Bronx, New York, FRS borrowed $220,600
during fiscal 2012 from the landjord, LMKW L.P., for the costs to build out the space. This loan is heing
repaid over a period of six years at an interest rate of 5%. As of September 30, 2016 and 2015, the
principal balance outstanding was $55,544 and $67,070, respectively.

On January 1, 2013, CWS borrowed $219,18] from the Georgianna Geddard Eaton Memorial Fund
(“Eaton Fund"), a related party, to fund leasehold improvements. Under the terms of the note, payments,
including interest at a rate of 3%, are due on a monthly basis commencing on April 1, 2013 and ending on
January 1, 2017. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, the principal balance outstanding was $28,989 and
$85,419, respectively.

On September 15, 2014, ESNY entered into a $63,045 note payable to finance the purchase of computers.
The interest rate charged on the outstanding borrowings is fixed at a rate equal to 3.15%. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $1,841 commenced November 2014 and in October 2017 all remaining
outstanding principal and interest are due. The note is secured by the computers. At September 30, 2016
and 2015, the principal balance outstanding was $21,475 and $44,219, respectively.

On December 5, 2014, ESNY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition
of certain property located in Valhalla, New York. The note was secured by the property and, after the
transfer of sole membership from Easter Seals New Hampshire, is guaranteed by FRS. The interest rate is
3.66% for the first 60 months then, as of the first day of the sixty-first month, the interest rate will reset to
1.75% in excess of the then bank’s five-year Cost of Funds. In no event shall the reset rate be less than
3.66%. Principal and interest of $9,153 is payable monthly through the maturity date of January 1, 2025.
At September 30, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance was $1,914,257 and 81,955,422,
respectively.

Bonds Paysble

In December 2013, FRS entered into 2 Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation (“Build

NYC™), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses. Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds (“Series 2013A"). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
June 2014, The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1, 2033.

-14.
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The Series A bonds were placed with IDB and, as part of the bond purchase and continuing covenant
agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB of $4,000,000,
which is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at
September 30, 2016 and 2015. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance of the
Series 2013A bonds was $17,995,000 and $18,450,000, respectively.

In December 2010, ESNY in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development Corporation and
RBS Citizens Bank, N.A. issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (“Series 2010").
The Series 2010 bonds were vsed to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Frondequoit,
New York and to refinance certain ESNY debt. The Series 2010 bonds are secured by a mortgage on all
properties and improvements financed by the bond and, after the transfer of sole membership of ESNY
from Easter Seals New Hampshire, are guaranteed by FRS. ESNY may elect to prepay some portion or
all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee as defined in the agreement. The agreement also
requires bank approval prior to ESNY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016 and thereafter
every five years through June 1, 2036, At September 30, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding principal balance
of the Series 2010 bonds was $4,683,050 and $4,834,502, respectively.

On February 23, 2011, ESNY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with 2 bank in connection

with the Series 2010 Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $4,929,360 and
$4,792,110 at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The outstanding notional amount decreases,

in conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. ESNY
remits interest at fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate ((68% of the sum of the monthly
LIBOR rate plus 2.65% (1.93% and 1.92% at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively)). The fair value
of the interest rate swap agreement as of September 30, 2016 and 2015 reflected a liability of $977,731

and $816,322, respectively. The swap is included within other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position, and is classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

The following is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30,

2016:
Notes Payable  Bonds Payzble Total
Year Ending September 30,
2017 : 145475 3 609,520 $ 754,995
2018 40,950 633,450 674,400
2019 42,496 657,500 699,996
2020 43,916 681,670 725,586
2021 45,765 731,050 776,815
Thereafter 1,701,663 19,364,860 21,066,523
Total $ 2020265 $§ 22678050 24,698,315
Less current partion 754,995
Long-term debt, net of current portion § 23943320
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2016 and 2015

10. ADVANCE FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

11.

On August 1, 2012, FRS entered in a contract with New York City Human Resources Agency (“HRA™)

to operate HRA’s WeCare program in the Boroughs of Brooklyn and Queens. Under the terms of the
contract, HRA made an advance of £4,689,872 to FRS, for working capital purposes. This advance is non-
interest bearing and will be recouped during the course of the contract in accordance with HRA policy, but
no later than the last year of the contract (i.e., July 31, 2015). At September 30, 2014, the advance from
government agency was 52,629,782, and in accordance with the agreement lerms, the remaining balance
was paid in fiscal 2015. The contract was renewed for an addition 2-year period, and on July 13, 2015,
HRA made another advance of $1,800,000 for working capilal purposes, This advance was non-interest
bearing and was be recouped during the course of the contract in accordance with HRA policy beginning
January 2016, but no later than July of 2016. At September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2015, the advance
from government agency was 30 and $1,800,000 respectively.

o

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP has leases for offices, program related facilities, and equipment expiring at various dates through
2032. The approximate future minimum lease commitments under existing operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30,
2017 5 82830,079
2018 7,620,584
2019 3,184,716
2020 1,111,473
2021 821,935
Thereafter 4,483,020
Total $ 26,051,807

Certain office leases contain renewal and escalation clauses. For leases with escalation clauses, FEDCAP
recognized rent expense on a straight-line basis and recognized a deferred rent liability of $1,161,996

and $870,055 at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. In addition to the base rents, FEDCAP is
obligated to pay additional amounts for increased operating costs.

Rent expense was $10,118,415 and $7,893,410 for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
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12,

13.

CWS sublets a portion of its facilities to tenants under operating leases that expire between April 2017 and
May 2020. For the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, rental income from these subleases was
$324,857 and $285,957, respectively. The future minimum sublease rental payments to be received are as
follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2017 $ 236,756

2018 160,600

2019 170,000

2020 43,125
Total $ 609,881

FEDCARP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.

FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and

contructs are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such
audits of government contracts by government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in

the opinion of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP’s financial position or change in net
assets. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

TUITION REVENUE

FRS receives funding for the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department,
administered by the Bureau of Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition income, which equaled net
tuition income, was $1,158,080 and $1,049,705 for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, and has been included within rehabilitation and vocational programs in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30, 2016 and
2015:

2016 2015
... For use in future periods for:
Employment and job search programs $ 413,139 8 693,049
Time restricted 1,156,133 1,482,043

Total $ 1,569,272 $ 2,175,092
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14,

15.

16.

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015

Employment and job search programs $ 745820 § 572503

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of the Board of Directors of FEDCAP are associated with a law firm that has provided legal
services to FEDCAP with fees of $285,776 and $176,548 during the years ended September 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund, the holder of the CWS promissory note (refer to
Note 9). CWS also leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund. Rent paid to Eaton Fund for the years ended

September 30, 2016 and 2015 was $129,996.
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions.
Employees are eligible to participate in the plan ag of their employment date.

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan vnder
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for employees working on government contracts with a
defined contribution pension plan based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate
in the plan upon satisfactory completion of a three-month probationary period.

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a Defined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In
November 1, 2010, the Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in
the plan immediately upon hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries.
Employer matching contributions fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans, Each participant is fully and immediately vested in employee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plan amounted to $6,492,132 and 35,491,104 for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

ACQUISITION

Effective September 1, 2015, FEDCAP acquired and became the sole member of ESNY. The
determination to acquire ESNY was predicated on the similarities in mission. ESNY’s mission is to
provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal
opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their communities. This acquisition was effected without the
transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $463,280 was recognized, which
represented the excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at

the date of acquisition:
Cash and ¢ash equivalents $ 812,974
Investments 738,949
Accounts receivable, net 2,385,468
Contributions receivable 905,326
Prepaid expenses and other assets 171,582
Inventory 8,803
Beneficial interest in trust 501,660
Other assets 166,330
Fixed assets 7,966,157
Accounts payable and sccrued expenses (1,885,181)
Deferred revenue (590,136)
Current portion of long term- debt (44,219)
Revolving loan (3,101,513)
Other liabilities (737,503)
Capital lease obligation (78,235)
Long tenm notes and mortgage payable (6,758,182)
$ 463,280

Effective September 1, 2016, FEDCAP acquired and became the sole member of ESRI. The determination
to acquire ESRI was predicated on the similarities in mission. ESRI’s mission is to provide services to
ensure that all people with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to

live, learn, work and play in their communities. This acquisition was effected without the transfer of
consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $68,889 was recognized, which represented the
excess of the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition date fair
values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities asswined at

the date of acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 560
Investments 5,520
Prepaid expenses and other assets 11,290
Beneficial interest in trust 35,760
Fixed assets 23,038
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7.219)
| $ 68889

Effective May 1, 2016, FEDCAP acquired and became the sole member of Granite Pathways. The
determination to acquire Granite Pathways was predicated on the similarities in mission. Granite Pathways’
mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental illness to pursue theis personal
goals through education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful relationships. This acquisition
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17.

18,

was effected without the transfer of consideration, and as such an inherent contribution of $9,841 was
recognized, which represented the excess of the acquisition date fair va{ues of the identifiable assets
acquired over the acquisition date fair values of the liabilities assumed.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition:

Cash and cash equivalents : $ 9,702

Accounts receivable, net 274

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (135)
5 0,841

Cn May 1, 2016, a Red Mango franchise was donated to ESNY, incorporated as 1184 Deer Park Ave,, Inc.
(*1184™). The entity is currently managed as a for-profit corporation, but may be repurposed as a social
enterprise to include a training center and employment opportunities for Veterans.

This acquisition was effected without the transfer of consideration and as such an inherent contribution of
$123,650 was recognized, which represented the acquisition date fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired, there was no assumption of liabilities. Identifiable assets acquired comprised solely of

equipment.
CONCENTRATIONS

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 21% and 28% of total revenues
during the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry
personnel, custodial and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one
New York State organization, which comprised 10% and 12% of total revenues during the years ended
September 30, 2016 and 20135, respectively. FEDCAP provides homecare services to one customer
comprising 2% of total revenues during the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™) limit. Management does not belicve that a
significant risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCARP cvaluated its September 30, 2016 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events through
March 6, 2017, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance. Except as
discussed in Note 8, above, and the subsequent paragraphs, FEDCAP is unaware of any events which
would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

On November 1, 2016, GP entered into a combination agreement with Seacoast Pathways, Inc to become its
sole member. The determination to acquire Seacoast Pathways, Inc. was predicated on the similarities in
mission and a geographic expansion of services in the New England Region. The mission of Seacoast
Pathways is to support adults living with mental illness on their paths to recovery through the work-ordered
day.
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On February 1, 2017, FRS entered into a combination agreement with Single Stop USA, Inc to become its
sole member. The determination to acquire Single Stop USA, Inc. was predicated on the similarities in
mission. Single Stop provides coordinated services to holistically connect people to the resources they need
to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.
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FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Kimberly A. Haney

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATION

Certified Recovery Support Worker, July 2016 to June 2018

NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals

Plymouth State University September 2018-

Clinical Mental Health, Graduate Program

Granite State College September 2016 to June 2018

Human Services, Bachelor's Degree

Lakes Region Community College September 2012 to May 2015

Human Services, Associates Degree

Lakes Region Community College September 2000 to May 2014

Assaociate in Science, Restaurant Management

Narcan Trained December 2016

Serve-Safe Certificate September 2001

On24 Webinar Academy Pro Certificate September 2013

VOLUNTEER WORK

NAMI-NH Volunteer and Practicum September 2014- December 2014

Lakes Region Community College
President, Student Senate May 2013- May 2014
President, C.A.R.E Society May 2012- May 2013
Member, Student Senate ‘May 2012- May 2013
President, Hospitality Club May 2002- May 2003

WORK HISTORY

Granite Pathways, Regional Access Point Services 10/2016 to Present

Director

Responsibilities Include:

e Weekly supervision of staff members

»  Provides comprehensive case management for clients and utilizes an evidence-based screening
tool, approved by the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to determine the likelihood of a
substance use disorder

e Performs case management supervision with staff on a weekly basis

o Completes monthly reporting and submits it to the Bureou of Drug and Alcohol Services

e Trained in and utilizes the New Hampshire Bureau af Drug and Alcohol Services Web information
Technology System {WITS)

* Answers and manages crisis colls from NH residents that are struggling with drug and alcohol
use

* Ensures targeted program goals and outcome measures are being met by working closely with
staff and my directors

e Represents the organization by facilitating presentations to outside facilities, groups and
community stake holders

e Develops relationships and executes memorandums of understanding with professional
organizations, providers and emergency responders

*  Assists with human resources to support staff including hiring and training




Kimberly A. Haney

is a liaison between the staff and the Director and assists in making decisions for operational

activities and goals.
Assists the Director in fulfilling all other duties and contract requirements

Accenture Federal Services 11/2015 to 11/2016
New Hampshire National Guard

Substance Abuse Prevention Coordinator

Responsibilities Include:

Facilitates annual training with National Guard service members to meet substance abuse Army
requirement '

Facilitates Unit Risk Inventory surveys with service members. Uses data to creote a risk
mitigation plan to share with Commanders and works with the Commanders to target their Units
specific prevention needs

Case manogement. Assists service members struggling with Alcohol and drugs. Reports case
updates to commanders weekly or monthly '
Creates and spreads prevention messaging specific to military service members

Completes numerous annual online trainings such as DOD Information Assurance Awareness,
DOD iWotch Antiterrorism, Ethics & Compliance, HIPAA/Privacy Act Clinical Training, Operations
Security Awareness, Alcohol & Drug, Army culture ond more (certificates furnished upon request)
Represents AFS and the Naotional Guard at numerous community meetings, including, but not
fimited to, Suicide Prevention Council, Family Member Support Suicide Prevention, Training
Advisory Committee, Coordination of Services for Military/Veterans Sub-Committee, NH
Community Health promotion/Resilience, Risk & Reduction, Governors Commission on Alcohol &
Drug Abuse, Prevention, Intervention and Treatment and more

Records prevention education and submits reports to the Army National Guard and Accenture
Federal Services databases on a regular basis

New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders and the 2/2008 to 11/2015
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association

Training Coordinator

Responsibilities Include:

Performed multiple functions needed to implement regularly scheduled substance abuse
treatment, recovery and prevention training events. Assisted in choosing topics, contacting
presenters, preparing materials, participant registration, equipment set up, room setup and
presenter support

Served as o resource for addiction professionals, mentof health professionals and the general
public

Completed Continuing Education Unit (CEU) applications for scheduled events, monitored CEU
information and served as the agencies contact person

Responsible for being the key support person for presenters including but not limited to
Scheduling the event, securing accommodations, collecting handouts, presenter assistonce and
more

Summarized evaluotion dota for quality assurance, as well as tracked stotistics, feedback and
report preparation

Was responsible for marketing a clearinghouse of NH professional development resources.




Kimberly A. Haney

Applied creative photography and desktop publishing skills in the production of various
documents/applications

Created and maintained several extensive databases for training events

Tracked payment of registration fees as well as invoiced participants and/or agencies for
poyment. Tracked and monitored credit card applications, online payments and registration fees
Performed general clerical duties to include but not limited to: directing phone calls, mass
emailing/marketing, photocopying, faxing, mailing and filing

Created and maintained social netwarking through Facebook as well as updating and
maintaining the website www.nhadaca.arg

Attended numerous training events that are drug and alcohol related

Coordinated, managed and recorded webinar trainings

Proficient in Adobe Connect, Adobe In Design, Adobe Photoshop, PowerPoint, Microsoft Excel,
Outioak, Publisher, Access and Word

Assisted Executive Director in fulfilling contract requirements

Worked to fulfill the Board of Directors mission

Horizons Counseling Center
Administrative Assistant 7/2008 to 12/2012

Responsibilities included:

Maintaining and implementing monthly client and insurance billing. Extensive knowledge in
billing programs such as Medicaid EDS and Therapist Pro.

Assisted in the coordination of counselor schedules using the Therapist Pro database program.
Receptionist duties such as greeting clients and visitor, answering and directing phone calls, data
entry, word processing, photocopying, faxing, mailing and filing.

Screened clients in person and by telephone.

Created and managed marketing documents using Microsoft Publisher.

Mauaintained ethicol practices and client confidentiality.

Managed QuickBoaks and other clerical duties.




KAREN VAUGHAN

EXPERIENCE
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Project Manager/Writer/Trainer

Training / Education / Video
Creative team leader commicted to delivering
projects within the defined scope, on time,
and on budget. Managed multiple projects
with creative teams using concise, and
effective communications.,

TECHNICAL SKILLS
Adobe Creative Cloud —~ Premier Elements
Video Editing - Final Cut Pro Video Editing —
Photoshop - Microsoft Office Products -M$
Project — Microsoft Visio - Sage Accounting -
Captivate — Lectora - Camtasia — Movie Magic
Budget/Scheduling — Final Draft Script Writing

EDUCATION/TRAINING

University of Portland, Portland, OR
BA, - Psychology/ Communication/ Marketing
Boston University, Boston, MA

MS Communication Coursework
PMP-Project Management Professional
Project Management Institute, Newton, PA
PMI-ACP Agile PM Coursework

PMI NH Chapter

Final Cut Pro Video Editing

Skillset, London, UK

Teaching English as a Second Language
ILS, Toronto, Canada

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Project Management Institute/NH Chapter

PROJECT MANAGER / TRAINER
FREELANCE - MANCHESTER, NH
PROJECTS

MANCHESTER SCHOOL DISTRICT — SUBSTITUTE TEACHER
Manchester, NH 2017-Present
Substitute Teacher at the Manchester High Schools.

B WELL WITH BETH FINNIGAN - PROJECT MANAGER

Manchester, NH 20[7-Present
Certified Holistic Health Coach Practitioner. Project management for
launch of an educational health program. Responsibilities include
scheduling, training video production and training materials editing.

MA DOC TRAINING ACADEMY - P.M. INSTRUCTIONAL DESIGN
MILFORD, MA 2015-2017
Instructional Design for an educational program to comply with the new
PREA law for the Department of Justice. The project included
developing blended curriculum for adult learners and organizing a
national curriculum launch event. Responsible for Instructional design,
classroom training materials, video production, eLearning and testing.

CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER
POWERHOUSE CONSULTING, BEDFORD, NH
2012-2014
Project Management for contact center training projects. Performed
program analytics, elicited program requirements, analyzed KPIs and assisted
with curriculum development. Projects include MedStar Health Assessment
and NYU Langone Medical Center. Developed training materials for on-
boarding and re-training adult learners. Communicated project updates and
reports to key stakeholders.

PROGRAM MANAGER / WRITER
ROW PRODUCTIONS, LONDON ENGLAND
' 2000-2012
Independent Production Company specializing in video, training, and event
production. Responsible for program development, business cases, complex
budgets and schedules, managing creative teams and analysis for key
stakeholders. Produced a variety of creative projects, delivering finished
projects that met the project scope, on time and on budget including:
curriculum development and teaching project management, script and
copywriting courses and Film Education Workshops train-the-trainer
curriculum for teachers. Guest lecturer at Oxbridge summer program in
film and video production for high school students at Cambridge University
and project managed the video workshops for Gilder Lehman Center
Global Lincoln Conference at Oxford University.



EDUCATION |

EXPERIENCE |

DONNA KEEFE

Trinity High School, Manchester, NH
Springfield College — BS Human Services/Administration
Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers —~ certified

12/1/2015 - Present
DIRECTOR OF NEW INITITIVES — GRANITE PATHWAYS NH

Granite Pathways is a subsidiary of Fedcap. As the Director of New
Initiatives, | manage the local day to day infrastructure and work with
referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing, community relations and development. { was also
instrumental in the startup of 2 programs, Safe Harbor Recovery Center
and Regional Access Point of Services, both in NH.

9/2013 — 1211/2015

NE DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS & CLIENT SERVICES

FEDCAP REHABILITATION SERVICES

As the NE Director of Admissions & Client Services, | supervised the
admissions process throughout the Fedcap NE regions working with all
the referring agencies to identify, develop and maintain relationships
pertaining to billing & client services. In this role, | worked in Rl to
systematically manage the federally mandated Interim Seftlement
Agreement that shut down segregated workshops for the DD population.
The Fedcap team in Rl developed programs and systems {o train the IDD
population to be gainfully employed in the community. This effort is
nationally recognized as Fedcap continues to educate other national
agencies via our R|, National Center Institute for System Improvement
seminars available on the Fedcap website.

1995 — 2013

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

EASTER SEALS NH, ME, NY, VT

As Director of Admissions for the Adolescent Residential/Educational
Psychiatric & Neurobehavioral Programs | was responsible for the
admissions and fransitions process within the continuum of care
programs as well as the final discharges from Easter Seals. | managed
referrals from various states and agencies where | applied knowledge of
differing state and agency placement requirements/laws. In addition to
working with families | managed the monthly billing, file retention,
census/wait list for 6 satellite intensive residential group homes and over
75 foster homes. |implemented may systems to manage the complex
admission/discharge process.



1992 - 1995

City of Manchester NH School Department

Served as a liaison between team members — parents, teachers,
administrators and students. | was responsible to implement behavior
plans/procedures to transition special education students back into the
traditional classroom from an altermative/self-contained classroom. |also
worked closely and supported low income families through the |EP
process at the inner city schools.

1988-1992

SERESC - BIRCHWOOD HIGH SCHOOL

Aided in developing class curriculums in this alternative setting for the
Seriously Emotionalily Disturbed students. Taught classes under
supervision of teacher, organized field trips and participated in all goal
oriented programs working 1:1 with the students if needed.
AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS/Trainings

1997 — Easter Seals President’'s Meritorious Award - for outstanding
service by an employee

2000 — Easter Seals NH, VT, NY, Employee of the Year — Chosen from
1,200 employees

2003 — Easter Seals Service First Award — Customer Service Award
2004 — Crisis intervention and Physical Restraint Training

2005 — State of NH DCYF/DJJS Directors Award — this award is given
yearly to one NH individual who goes above and beyond to help the state
workers solve their difficult cases

2015 — Mental Health First Aid USA

2016 — CCAR Recovery Coach Academy & Training of Trainers Program
2016 — NAMI NH'’s Connect Suicide Prevention Training

2016 — Crisis Intervention in the Workplace _

2016 — Breaking the Stigma — Language Training

2017 — First Aid/CPR and Narcan Training
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PATRICIA M. REED
NEW HAMPSHIRE STATE DIRECTOR

QUALIFICATIONS
Demonstrated executive with more than 30 years’ experience serving individuals with disabilities in

children and youth services, addiction services, and residential treatment programs
EXPERIENCE ‘

2018 New Hampshire State Director, Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
* Responsible for overall program management, program expansion and development, fiscal
integrity, quality compliance and external relationships in New Hampshire for Granite Pathways,

Inc.

2017 to 2018 Consuitant
* Provide system analysis and consultation for a variety of entities providing services to individuals
with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and behavioral heaith needs
e Led three NH regional agencies serving this population to plan for youth with challenging
behaviors to receive adult services to meet their needs in a community based context

2015 to 2017 Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Lakeview Management, Inc., Austin TX

* Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty
Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wi

e Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program
development to most effectively utilize Lakeview’s resources

» Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2015 Executive Director, Lakeview Neurorehabilitation Center, Inc., Effingham, NH
e Responsible to provide program and operations consultation and support to Lakeview Specialty
Hospital and Rehabilitation Center in Waterford, Wil
¢ Directed to develop relationships with funders and providers in other states to pursue program
deveiopment to most effectively utilize Lakeview’s resources
¢ Represented the company in all matters for New England, New Jersey and Pennsylvania

2014 to0 2015 Children’s Director, NH Bureau of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH'

* Responsible to provide leadership in planning and development of the state children’s behavioral
health system, act as liaison between CMHC Children’s programs and the state office for program
and client specific information exchange and problem solving

* Provided support to implement statewide initiatives

e Represented the Department of Health and Human Service on the Children’s Behavioral Heaith
Collaborative Executive Committee, Steering Committee and various workgroups

e Co-coordinated the Safe Schools/Health Students grant with the Department of Education



2011 to 2014 Project Director, Health Profession Opportunity Project, NH Office of Minority Health and
Refugee Affairs, Concord, NH

e Directed and implemented a five-year, $12 million-doliar healthcare workforce development
grant to recruit, train and place low income individuals in healthcare jobs

e Developed RFP's, negotiated and managed contracts, and monitored grant and contractor
budgets '

e Worked closely with regional health care providers to understand their workforce needs;
partnered with educational programs and other community groups to ensure that the individuals
are well prepared to meet employer expectations for technical and soft skills

e Provided leadership and direction to develop innovative strategies to overcome system based
barriers to education, training and self-sufficiency for NH citizens

¢ Collaborated with other NH workforce programs to efficiently use available resources to achieve

shared employment goals

2002 to 2010 Senior Director of Clinical Services, Easter Seals of NH, Manchester, NH

e Provided feadership and oversight for the design, organization and delivery of clinical services for
Easter Seals NH, including the development of Autism Services, an adolescent program for dual
disorder treatment, residential DBT program and management of a residential treatment
program for adults with substance abuse issues

e Provided oversight for the DCYF Administrative Case Review contract
Developed and monitored budgets for programs

e Worked collaboratively with Easter Seals Development to write federal, state, and foundation
grants, progress reports and budget monitoring

e Developed relationships with funders and providers in NH and other states to pursue program
development and effective treatment and services for individuals and families

EDUCATION

* Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA: Graduate School of Arts and Science Department of Sociology (Four
Year Doctoral Work)

¢ B.A. Norte Dame College, Manchester, NH Major- Behavioral Science/ Minor- English Summa Cum
Laude, Dean’s List

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Contracted to assist staff and clients on three community based residential facilities in the development

of client self-government programs through participant observation and didactics. Responsibie for both

training and evaluation. Sites included Seacoast Mental Health Center- Portsmouth, NH and Greater

Manchester Mental Health Center- Manchester, NH. Responsible for leading the research design, data

collection and reporting for the evaluation of a partial Hospital Program. The primary methodology was

intensive interviewing.




An ambitious health care Finance Professional with sound judgment and decision-making skill;
Extensive experience in Home Health, Hospice and Hospital Medicare, Medicaid, MCO billing

and revenue cycle management,

Edncatlon
Oral Roberts University, Tulza, Oklahoma
Master's in Business Administration (MBA)
Federal University of Technology Owerri, Nigerla
Bachelor of Science, Engineering

Certifications:
BFMA — Certified Healthcare Finance Professional (in progress)

CIMA -~ Certificate of Buginess Accounting
NIM - Proficiency Certificate in Management

Highlizhts and Proficiencies

Over 6 years of experience in the Health Care industry

Over 4 years of effective management iz Healthcare Finance.
Understanding of Medicare and Medicaid regulatory requirements.
Bxcellent presentation skills

Knowledge of HMOs, Medicare and Medicaid billing requirements
Strong Analytical and Critical thinking skills )
Strategic planning experience in the Healthcare industry
Knowiedge of HIPAA compliance

Bxtensive knowledge of several medical billing sofiware

Denied Claim analysis and resohmtion

Medicare and Commercial Insurance eligibility determination

Professional History

FEDCAP Rehabilitation Services, NY, NY
Rilling & Collections Specialist

2/2017- Current
¢ Processed and sent billing claims (electronic & paper) to various payers including Health

First, Scnior Health partners, ICS, Visiting Nurses etc.

Accounts Recetvables

Cask Posting

Produced biweekly billing reports which are presented 1o management.
Conducted insurance benefits and eligibility checks for Clients/Patients
Monitored and ensured the payment for services provided

Monitored accounts receivable and ensured the Aging stays below 90 days

———



Monitored all client accounts receivable activity and performance and initiated
appropriate corrective measures as needed.
Researched and solved complex billing and account receivable problems

Magna Heslth Crre Inc, Broken Arrow, OK
Billing/ Revenue Cycle Manager
$/2013 - 1.2017

P ® 8 O @

Monitored and worked with the Chief compliance officer to ensure prompt compliance
with cxisting and new regulations from Medicars, Medicaid and other contracts,
Worked with the Chief Opemting Office to ensure prompt filing of all required financial
and regulaiory document.

Reviewed and developed a more effective audit process

Reviewed and developed new billing policy and procedures for Magna Home Health,
Magna Hospice and Magna Community living Services.

Developed processes fur the efficient end successful flow of interdependent information
between Direct Cere/Clinical staff and the billing department; and between the billing
department and Senior Management.

Served as in-house project manager on various software implementation projects
Served as the contact person/ lisisan for our software vendors

Presented monthly billing reports to the Financial controller

Presented Quarterly billing reports to CFO, COO and their teams,

Provided Software training for new employees

Served as resource person various project teams and conducted feasibility studies and
analyses of acquisitions and startup profects.

Developed User mamials; *How toes™ handbooks for varicus software

Served as contact person in the acquisition, research and selection of Software

I developed processes and policies for handling Appeals, Denials, Recoupments, and
Secondary payer and other complex billing situations.

Resolves complex Client, Billing & Cleims issues when necessary.

Oversaw the billing and collections department of Mapna Home Health, Magna Hospice

and Magna Community living services,

Magna Health Care, Inc, Broken Arrow, OK.
Billing Coordinsator
872011 — 712013

P & o @

I coordinated the activities of three others billing staffs in the claims/billing department.
I processed and sent billing claims (electronic & paper) to various payers including
Medicare, Humana and other Commercial Insurance

I produced biweekly billing reports which are presented to management.

I conducted insurance benefits and eligibility checks for Clients'/Patients

I monitored and ensured the payment of Qutliers by Medicare where applicable.
Idertified "bottlenecks" in the billing protess and suggested new and improved progesses
that reduced the overall billing cycle,

I coordinated the daily performance of the billing depariment and all accounts receivable
operations

Created a finencial Scorecard to monitor and communicate the financial performance of
Magna Home Health to Manegement.




e Oversaw the transition into new billing software and coordinated the appropriate setup of
different payers’ electronic claims and billing profiles.

» Monitored &ll client accounts receivable activity and performance and initiated
appropriate corrective measures as neaded.

Magpna Health Care, Inc. Broken Arrow, OK
I'T Support Staft/ Trainer
5/2010 - 8/2011

Install and perform minor repairs to hardwire, software, or peripheral equipment,

following design or installation specifications.

¢ Set up equipment for employee use, performing or ensuring proper installation of cables,
operating systerns, or appropriate software.

¢ Maintain records of IT inventory, daily data comrmmication transactions, problems and

remedial actions taken, or installation activities.

Manage user and resource accounts in Active Directory.

Perform daily server and backup operations.

Ensure computers have the mandatory security software to protect against external

threats,

Refer major hardware or software problems or defective products to vendors or

technicians for service

Cotfer with staff, users, and management to establish requirements for new systems or

modifications,

Read technical menuals, confer with users, or conduct computer diagnostics to

investigate and resolve problems or to provide technical assistance and support.

Develop training materials and procedures, or train users in the proper use of hardware or

software.
Answer vser inquiries regarding computer software or hardware operation 1o resolve

problems.
o Served as a resource person on varions software — inchuding
Served as the in-house project Manoager on various softwarc implementation projects

Federal University of Technology, Yola, Nigeria
Graduoate Assisiant

B/2007 - 7/2008
» Taught Material Science snd Engineering Tutorial classes to second year Engineering

students
Taught Corrosion Epgineering Tutorial Classes to third year Engineering students

» Iprovided gnidance to final years mechanical engineering students on how to locate

appropriste information on their final year projects.
1 provided administrative assistance to Head of Department (Chair) of Mechanical
Engineering Department. Assisted in invigilating students in both Examination and Test

exercises

REFERENCES AVALAIBLE UPON REQUEST




GRANITE PATHWAYS

Key Personnel

% Paid from this| Amount Paid from
Narme Job Tk Salary Contract this Contract
Haney, Kimberly Program Director-RAPS $59,155.20 50% $29,577.60
Vaughn, Karen Project Manager $52,000.00 25% $13,000.00
Keefe, Doma Director of Program Initiatives $74,256.00 2% $16,707.60
Reed, Patricia NH State Director- Granite Pathways $104,998.40 20% $20,999.68
Nioku, Wellington Business Manager-Occupational Health $59,990.00 4% $2.249.63




Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www,dhhs.nh.gov

February 8, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Governor and Executive Council approval.

January 24, 2018 (Late |

Fund

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into a retroactive, sole source amendment with
Granite Pathways, c/o Fedcap, Vendor ID# 228300-B001, 10 Ferry Street, Concord NH 03301, to
continue Regional Access Point Services that assist individuals with substance use disorders obtain
the services by increasing the price limitation by $100,000 from $1,998,587 to $2,098,587 with no
change to the completion date of June 30, 2018, retroactive to February 1, 2018 effective upon

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on July 13, 2016 (Item
#6C) and subsequently amended on June 21, 2017 (item #41), December 20, 2017 (ltem #5G), and

S.

tem #C). The funding for the amendment is 80% Federal Funds 20% General

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIJAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget Increasel (Decrease) | Modified Budget
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Prog Sve $1,200,000 30 $1,200,000
Subtotal $1,200,000 30 31,200,000

05-95-92-920510-3384 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL

SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN T1010035 CFDA 93.959

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget Increasef (Decrease) | Modified Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500734 Prog Svc $406,700 $100,000 506,700
Subtotal $406,700 $100,000 $506,700




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

05-95-92-920510-2559 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, OPIOID STR
GRANT 100% Federal Funds FAIN T1080246 CFDA 93.788

SFY Class/Account Title Current Budget | Increase/ (Decrease) | Modified Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500734 Prog Sve $ 391,887 $0 $ 391,887
Subtotal $391,887 $0 $391,887
Total $1,998,587 $100,000 $ 2,098,587
EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because additional hours of coverage for regional access services
were instituted on February 1, 2018 due to the development of new processes for Manchester's Safe
Station.

The original contract was one (1) of three (3) sole source contracts for services. The contracts
were sole source because it was necessary to implement services as quickly as possible in order to
meet the immediate demand for services. Vendors were chosen based on their capacity to implement
Regional Access Point Services statewide in a highly efficient manner. As of September 2017, three
thousand two hundred five (3,205) individuals have accessed these services and been assisted in
identifying and entering clinically appropriate substance use disorders treatment and recovery support
services. Feedback from clients indicates that the Regional Access Point Services made the process
significantly easier for them and that the support provided to them during the process was invaluable.

This amendment allows the Contractor to continue providing Regional Access Point Services to
any individual living, working, or otherwise seeking services in the Greater Manchester area from the
hours of 8:30 -am to 11 pm, Monday through Friday and 11 am to 11 pm, Saturday and Sunday. The
expanded hours will meet the need of demand resulting from new processes implemented at
Manchester's Safe Station -

Regional Access Point Services include screening clients for substance use disorders,
completing evaluations to recommend a leve! of treatment or recovery support services, referring
clients to providers for treatment services or recovery support services, and enrolling clients with third
party payers, case management, and crisis support. This scope of work in this contract has been
expanded to explicitly require support for Safe Stations in Manchester given the critical nature of that
programming.

The attached Contract includes language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up
to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The contract has already been
renewed for one (1) year leaving one (1) year of renewal remaining.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access Point
Services may not be available to individuals at Manchester Safe Stations with the extended hours. The
inability to access these services may negatively impact an individual's ability to achieve andfor
maintain recovery from substance use disorders.

Areas served: Greater Manchester area

Source of Funds: The funding for the amendment is 80% Federal Funds 20% General Funds.
The total funding for the contract is 16% Genera!l Funds; 84% Federal Funds (CFDA #93.959 FAIN
TI010035 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mentai Health
Services Administration, Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse, Substance
Abuse Block Grant SABG and CFDA #93.788 FAIN T1080246 U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Opioid STR Grant).



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Generai Funds will not be
requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted,
/"‘f— "—
VAN~ B 7%

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services Contract

This 4™ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #4”) dated this 31* day of January, 2018, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Granite Pathways (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at c/o Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc., 10 Ferry Street,
Concord, NH, 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement {the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13, 2016 {Item #6C) and subsequently amended by Amendment #1 approved on June 21, 2017
(ltem #41), Amendment #2 approved on December 20, 2017 {ltem #4G), and Amendment #3 approved
on January 24, 2018 {Late Item #C), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3, the
Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and Governor and Executive Council
approval; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the-price limitation and modify the scope of work; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. General Provisions {Form P-37), Block 1.8, increased by $100,000 from $1,998,587 to read
$2,098,587.

Delete Exhibit A - Amendment #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A — Amendment #2.
3. Delete Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #1 in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #2.
4. Add Exhibit K — DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Granite Pathways

Amendment #4
85-2017-BDAS-01-REGIQ-01 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

This amendment shall be efféctive upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2 15/ < 'y:A_v—"_ % [
Date ' Katja S. Fox
Director

Granite Pathways

rithe (e Iy

Date Name; /&_’Q [ S e prio
Cro

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of _ A\eass !E J;,& , County of on OZ/GK/Z.OIY , before the
undersigned officer\personally appeared the pergon identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

dﬂ»« A@M/w’/ﬂ

Signatyré of Ngfary Public or Justice of the Peace

Amy, Reisner, Rovany Lol
Name afyd Title of Notary or Justige of the Peace

My Commission Expires: 12 /ZK _/u

AMY REISNER
Notary Public - State of New York
NO. 01RES215281

Qualitied in Kings Count
My Commission Expires IZT_L_?—\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Title: ),

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the ernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date i Name:
. Title:

Granite Pathways
Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Statewide Regional Access Point Services
§5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith. ’

The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean calendar days,
except where business days are specifically noted. For these purposes, a business
day shall generally mean any day from Monday to Friday, except Holiday observed
by the government of the State of New Hampshire.

For the purposes of this contract, all data entry, documentation and recording shall
be completed using the Web [nformation Technology System (WITS).

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain one or more service sites, which shall
comply with all fire, health, and safety codes which shall include but not be limited to
being handicap and wheelchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the Department prior to entering
into any agreement regarding service site relocation.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event policy in Exhibit A-
1, Sentinel Event Policy.

The Contractor shall participate in the Regional Public Heaith Network(s) associated
with the towns served by the Regional Access Points {(RAP) under this contract,
which shall include, but not be limited to:

1.8.1.  Working with Regional Public Health Network staff in the development of a
resiliency and recovery oriented system of care (RROSC) in the region(s).

1.8.2.  Participating in the Regional Continuum of Care Workgroup(s).

The Contractor shall engage in quality assurance and management activities, which
shall include but not be limited to:

1.9.1.  Site reviews by the Department.

1.8.2.  Other quality assurance and management activities, as determined by the
Department.

2. Services to be Provided

21.

The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered and records are stored in a
manner that is compliant with 42 CFR, Part 2.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials;_{ 6 E
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Substance Use Disorder - Statewide Regional Access Point Services
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

22,

2.3.

2.4,

25.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8

The Contractor shall ensure that all staff providing services under this contract
receive annual training on the requirements of 42 CFR, Part 2.

The Contractor shall provide statewide Regional Access Paints (RAP) for the
provision of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and Substance Use Disorder (SUD)
information, screening, and referral services to any individual living, working, or
otherwise seeking services in the state of New Hampshire.

The Contractor shall coordinate RAP services with the Manchester and Nashua Safe
Stations program and shall submit a plan for the coordination process to the
Department by February 24, 2018. At a minimum, the plan shall include the
following;

2.41. Provision of RAP services for the Manchester Safe Stations program:
2.4.1.1. Monday through Friday from 8:30 am through 11 pm.
2.4.1.2. Saturdays and Sundays from 11 am through 11 pm.

24.2. Provision of RAP services for the Nashua Safe Stations program including
an outline of the days and hours services will be provided.

243. The process for receiving referrals from both programs.
2.44. The process for providing information back to both programs.
The Contractor shall provide Regional Access Point (RAF)} services to assist:

2.5.1. Individuals with SUD or OUD who are age twelve (12) or older, or under
age twelve (12) with the consent of a parent or other legal guardian; and

2.52. Residents of, or homeless individuals in, New Hampshire.

The Contractor shall cooperate with the Department to conduct outreach activities
utilizing an outreach plan and materials developed by the Department to promote
and market Regional Access Point {(RAP} services.

The Contractor shall maintain muitiple information channels by which an individual
may request information that shall include, but not be hmlted to telephone, encrypted
e-mail, and in-person. The Contractor shall

2.7.1. Respond to all requests for information within twenty-four (24) hours of
receiving requests for information.

2.7.2. Utilize the statewide addiction crisis hotline as the primary telephone
access point.

2.7.3.  Ensure information available through all information channels includes, but
is not limited to types and locations of services available:

2.7.3.1. For SUD or OUD treatment and recovery support.
2.7.3.2. Tosupport friends, family members and other concerned individuals.

The Contractor shall respond to requests for SUD or OUD treatment services by
scheduling a screening appointment for the client. The Contractor shall:

2.8.1. Ensure the screening appointment is scheduled within forty-eight (48) hours
of the client’s initial request for services.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #2 Cantractor Initials: /é'/
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2.8.2. Provide an appointment date that is within ten (10) days of scheduling the
appointment.

2.8.3. Ensure the screening appointment;
2.8.3.1. Can be completed by the client in person or by telephone;

2.8.3.2. Is completed by a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW), who
shall, at a minimum;

2.8.3.2.1. Gather client demographic, contact, and emergency contact
information;

2.8.3.2.2. |dentify payer sources available to the client; and

2.8.3.2.3. Use an evidence-based screening tool, as approved by the
Department, to determine the likellhood of a substance use
disorder, as defined by the DSM 5.

2.8.4. Document client profile, intake and admission information in WITS within
three (3) days of completing the screening.

2.9. The Contracter shall schedule, through Memorandums of Understanding with SUD
or OUD treatment providers, evaluations of clients who screen positive for SUD or
OUD within forty-eight (48) hours of the completed screening in Section 2.6, as
appropriate. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.9.1. Evaluations are completed within ten (10} days of scheduling the
evaluation.

292  Evaluations are completed by a Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(LADC), Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC), or
licensed mental health professional who has demonstrated competency in
the treatment of SUD or OUD, as applicable.

2.9.3. ' Clients are evaluated in all American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM,
October 2013) dimensions.

2.9.4: Evaluations are completed using one or more evidence-based evaluation
tools.

2.9.5. Evaluations meet ‘Addiction Counseling Competencies, TAP 21’ standards
(hitp://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-2 1-Addiction-Counseling-
Competencies/SMA15-4171).

2.9.6. Evaluations include a DSM-5 Substance Use Disorder diagnosis when
appropriate.

2.9.7. Recommendations are provided to clients diagnosed as having a substance
use disorder, as appropriate, which must include, but are not be limited to,
recommendations for:

2.8.7.1.  Aninitial ASAM level of care.
2.9.7.2. Recovery support and/or other needed services.

2.9.7.3. Interim services if the indicated ASAM level of care is not inmediately
available to the client.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A ~ Amendment #2 Contractor Iniials; !ﬂ")
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2.9.8. Diagnosis information is entered into WITS within three (3} business days
of completing each evaluation.

2.9.9. Coordination with the Department's contractor, Families in Transition, to
ensure client evaluations are completed when clients enter RAP services
through the Manchester Safe Stations program.

2.9.9.1. The Contractor shall submit a plan to coordinate client evaluations in
Section 2.7.9 for Department approval within thirty {30) days from the
date Governor and Executive Council approve this amendment.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide referral services to clients in order to meet the
recommendations that result from the evaluation in Section 2.7.7. The Contractor
shall:

210.1. Ensure referral services are provided by a CRSW.
2.10.2. Ensure referral services include, but are not limited to:

2.10.2.1. Identifying provider agencies that can meet the evaluation
recommendations in Section 2.7.7.

2.10.2.2. Contacting the provider agency on behalf of the client, as appropriate.

2.10.2.3. Assisting the client with making contact with the provider agency, as
appropriate.

2.10.2.4. Supporting the client in meeting the admission/entrancefintake
requirements of the provider agency.

2.10.3. Refer individuals diagnosed with OUD to Medication Assisted Treatment
providers when deemed appropriate by the evaluating clinician and the
client.

2.10.4. Develop and maintain a list of provider agencies by region to meet the
needs of clients. The list must not contain identifiable individuat or client
health, personal or financial information. Provider agency information within
the database may include, but is not limited to:

2.10.4.1. Substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services
2.10.4.2, Physical health services

2.10.4.3. Behavioral health services

2.10.4.4. Employment and education services

2.10.4.5. Housing setvices

2.10.5. The list of vendors in 2.11.4 above shall be considered the property of the
department and shall be surrendered to the department upon request.

2.10.6. Ensure Memorandums of Understanding are executed with SUD or OUD,
as applicable, treatment and peer recovery support services providers in
the communities within each region served to ensure clients can access
interim and other services within seven (7) days of completed evaluations
described in Section 2.7.
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211,

212,

2.13.

The Contractor shall assist clients to enrolt with payer services. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Assess clients for probable eligibility for public or private insurance, such as
Medicaid; the New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP); and
Qualified Health Plans available through the Marketplace.

2.11.2. Assist clients with enroliment with the appropriate payer. Assistance shall
include, but not be limited to:

2.11.2.1. Providing one-on-one support to clients throughout the enroliment
process.

2.11.2.2. Providing clarification on information that neéds to be provided to the
payer agency to ensure enrolliment can be completed by the client.

The Contractor shall' provide Continuous Recovery Monitoring services to clients as
follows:

2.12.1. Attempt to contact each client a minimum of three (3) times over the course
of one week. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1.1. Attempt contact by telephone at a reasonable time when the client
would normally be available.

2.12.1.2. Attempt a second contact, as necessary, by telephone at a
reasonable time when the client would normally be availableé no
sooner than two (2) days and no later than three (3) days after the first
attempt in Section 2.10.1.1.

2.12.1.3. Attempt a third contact, as necessary, by telephone at a reasonable
time when the client would normally be available, no sooner than two
(2) days and no later than three (3) days after the second attempt in
Section 2.10.1.2,

2.12.1.4, Not exceed tweive (12} attempts in a thirty (30) day period.
2.12.2. Contact clients as frequently as weekly and no less frequently than:
2.1221. Three (3) months post-admission to RAP services.
21222, Six (6) months post- admission to RAP services.
2.12.2.3. Twelve (12) months post-admission to RAP services.
2:12.3. Inquire on the status of each client's recovery.
2.12.4. |dentify any client needs.
2.12.5. Assist the client with addressing the needs identified in Section 2.10.4.

2.12.6. Provide early intervention to clients who have relapsed or whose recovery
is at risk, as identified in Sections 2.10.3 - 2.10.4, and record the same.

2.12.7. Complete the client follow-up in WITS within three (3) days of each
completed contact identified in Section 2.10.1.

The Contractor shall enter client discharge information into WITS within three (3)
days of client discharge.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: [W

§8-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page 50f 9 Datezm



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Statewide Regional Access Point Services
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

3. Data and Reporting Requirements

3.1.  The Contractor shali provide monthly de-identified and/or aggregate reports that
include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.  Time lapses for services including, but not limited to:
3.1.1.1.  Initial client contact to screening
3.1.1.2.  Screening to evaluation
3.1.1.3.  Evaluation to interim services
3.1.1.4.  Evaluation to regular services

3.1.2. Type of payer enroliment assessment and/or assistance provided, as
described in Section 2.9.

3.2.  The Contractor shall provide monthly reports identifying SUD or QUD treatment and
peer recovery support services providers with whom Memorandums of
Understanding have been executed to provide evaluation and treatment services.
Reports must not include PHI or personally identifiable individual or client
information. Reports shall include, but not be limited to:

3.2.1.  Name, location, and contact information of the provider.
3.2.2.  Specific services provided by the provider.

3.3. The Contractor shali gather, monitor, and submit data to the Department monthly.
Participant data will be submitted in de-identified, aggregate form to the Department
using a Department-approved method. The data being collected includes all data
points required in the Treatment Episode Data for Admissions which includes, but is
not {imited to:

3.3.1.  Treatment Setting

3.3.2.  Number of prior treatment episodes
3.3.3. Prmary source of referral

3.3.4. Age at admission

3.3.5. Pregnancy status

3.3.6. Race/Ethnicity

3.3.7. Education

3.3.8. Employment status

3.3.9. Primary substance

3.3.10. Route of administration

3.3.11. Frequency of use

3.3.12, Age at first use

3.3.13. Co-Occurring Substance Abuse and Mental Health Status
3.3.14, Veteran status

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: /&)‘J
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3.3.15.
3.3.16.
3.3.17.
3.3.18.
3.3.19.
3.3.20.
3.3.21.
3.3.22.
3.3.23.

Living arrangements

Primary source of income

Health insurance status

Primary source of payment

Details for those not-in-labor-force

Marital status

Days waiting to enter treatment

Number of arrests in past 30 days

Frequency at self-help programming 30 days prior to admission

3.4. The Contractor shall report on federally-required data points specific to this funding
opportunity quarterly and send the results in de-identified, aggregate form to the

Depa

riment using a Department-approved method. The required data points include,

but are not limited to:

3.4.1.

Number of participants with OUD’s:
3.4.1.1. Intotal
3.41.2. Referred to and receiving MAT
3.4.1.3. Receiving care coordination/case management.

3.4.1.4. Receiving peer recovery support services.

4. Minimum Performance Measures

41. The Contractor shall comply with Continuous Recovery Monitoring contacts
described in Section 2.10, as follows:

4.1.

4.1.
4.1.

1. Twenty-five percent (25%) of clients shall be contacted three (3) months
after admission.

2. Ten percent (10%) of clients shall be contacted (6) months after admission.

3. Five percent (§%) of clients shall be contacted twelve {12) months after
admission.

5. Deliverables

5.1, The Contractor shall respond to all requests for information described in Section 2.5
within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving the requests.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure screening appointments described in Section 2.6 are
scheduled within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving clients’ requests for services.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure all client services provided through this contract are
documented and/or recorded within three (3) days of providing the service.

Granite Pathways
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6. Liguidated Damages

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

The Contractor and the Department agree that the WITS shall be the source of
record with data polls taking place on the tenth (10") day of the month, beginning
with August 10, 2016.

The Contractor and the Department agree that it will be extremely impracticable and
difficult to determine actual damages that the Department will sustain in the event
that the vendor fails to maintain the required performance standards in Section 4,
Performance Standards, throughout the life of the contract. Any breach by the
Contractor will delay and disrupt the Department’s operations and obligations and
lead to significant damages. Therefore, the parties agree that the liquidated damages
as specified in the sections below are reasonakle.

Assessment of liquidated damages shail be in addition to, not in lieu of, such other
remedies as may be available to the Department. Except and to the extent expressly
provided herein, the Department shall be entitled to recover liquidated damages
cumulatively under each section applicable to any given incident as described in
Section 6.8.

The Department shall make all assessments of liquidated damages. Should the
Department determine that liquidated damages may, or will be assessed; the
Department shall notify the Contractor as specified in Section 7, Notifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages, below.

The Contractor shall submit a written Corrective Action Plan to the Department within
five (5) business days of receiving notification as specified in Section 7, Notifications
and Remedies for Liquidated Damages, for review and approval prior to
implementation of the Corrective Action Plan.

The Contractor agrees that as determined by the Department, failure to provide
services that meet the performance standards in Section 4, Performance Standards,
shall result in in liquidated damages as specified in Section 7, Notifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages. The Department’s decision to assess liquidated
damages must be reasonable, based in fact and made in good faith.

The remedies specified in Section 7, Notifications and Remedies for Liguidated
Damages, shall apply until the failure is cured or resulting dispute is resolved in the
Contractor’s favor.

Liquidated damages in the amount of $500 per month for failure to meet the
Minimum Performance Measures identified in Section 4. It is agreed by the parties
that damages may only be assessed by the Department related to Section 4 above
and that the amount of damages is limited to the amounts delineated in this Section
6.8 and that no other liquidated damages may be assessed.

The amount of liquidated damages assessed by the Department to the Contractor
shall not exceed the price limitation in Form P-37, General Provisions, block 1.8,
Price Limitation.
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7. Notifications and Remedies for Liquidated Damages.

7.1, Prior to the imposition of liquidated damages or any other remedies under this
Contract, including termination for breach, the Department shall issue written notice
of remedies that shall include, as applicable:

7.1.1.
7.1.2.
7.1.3.

7.1.4.
7.1.5.

A citation to the Contract provision violated.
The remedies to be applied and the date the remedies shall be imposed.

The basis for the Department's determination that the remedies shall be
imposed.

A request for a Corrective Action Plan.

The timeframe and procedure for the Contractor to dispute the
Department’s determination. The Contractor's dispute of liquidated
damages or remedies shall not stay the effective date of the proposed
liquidated damages or remedies.

If the failure is not resolved within the cure period, liquidated damages may
be imposed retroactively to the date of failure to perform and continue until
the failure is cured or any resulting dispute is resolved in the Contractor’'s
favor,

7.2.  In connection with any action taken or decision made by the Department with respect
to this Contract, within ninety (90) days following the action or decisions, the
Contractor may protest such action or decision by the delivery of a notice of protest
to the Department and by which the Contractor may protest said action or decision
and/or request an informal hearing with the Director of the Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services. '

7.2.1.

7.2.2.

7.2.3.

7.2.4.

7.2.5.

Granite Pathways

The Contractor shall provide the Department with an explanation of its
position protesting the Department’s action or decision.

The Director shall determine a time that is mutually agreeable to the parties
during which they may present their views on the disputed issues. It is
understood that the presentation and discussion of the disputed issues will
be informal in nature.

The Director shall provide written notice of the time, format and location of
the presentation.

At the conclusion of the presentations, the Director shall consider all
evidence and shall render a written recommendation as soon as’
practicable, but in no event more than thirty {30) calendar days after the
conclusion of the presentation.

The Director may appoint a designee to hear and determine the matter.

Exhibit A — Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: /é”‘/
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EXHIBIT B-2 Amendment #2 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Granite Pathways

Budget for: Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

Budget Period: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

& NN
Total Salary/Wages 534679.88 | $
Employee Benefits $ 164,158.83 | $
Consultants $
Equipment; $
Rental 3
Repair and Maintenance $
Purchase/Depreciation 3
5. Supplies: 3
Educational $
Lab 3
Pharmacy $
Medical $
QOffice 3
6. Travel $
Occupancy $

8. Cumrent Expenses 3 -
$
8
g
$
3
3
$
$
$
$
3
$
$
3
$

508,841.47
183,859.12

84,161.59
19,695.19

SNEANE

25257.32
13,219.98

22,551.18
11,803.54

2,706.14
1,416.42

Wl

™~

Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance
Board Expenses
9. Software
10. Marketing/Technology $ 18,794.53
11. Staff Education and Training
12, Subceniracts/Agreements $ 50,320.77
13. Qther
Professicnal Fees

21,049.87

66,359.26

2,255.34

6.038.49

TOTAL $ 802,309.83 96,277.18 | $ 898,587.01
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 12.0%

Contractor Initials / o
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identiftable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, “ Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the tcrm “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other sueh as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor’s employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Aecountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of a
system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardwarc,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or

V3. Last update 1.24,2018 ‘ Exhibit K Contractor Initials ZE:!A_A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network will be considered an open network
and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or
confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI”’) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is
linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother’s
maiden name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information™ (or “PHI™) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R.
§ 160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American
National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
inciuding but not limited to all its dircctors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
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of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not, disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena,
etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or
object to the disclosure. .

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. :

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications havc
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure.
SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified
ground mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
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Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
network. End User may only employ a wireless network when remotely transmitting
via a VPN.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User’s mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will
be transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to'prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any dcrivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, -unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Coniract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. _The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

“4. The Contractor agrees to rctain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section VI. A.

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
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FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the
hosting infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for
Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requircments will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A.~Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
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of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media
used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities arc in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. Ifthe Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those
for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will executc a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The
purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and Contractor to monitor for any
changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may occur over the life of the
Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the Contractor, or the
Department may request the survey be completed when the scope of the engagement
between the Department and the Contractor changes.

V3. Last update 1.24.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials { d"/

DHHS Infarmation

Security Requirements d
Date }/ I{

Page 6 of 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New
Hampshire or Department data offshorc or outside the boundaries of the United States
unless prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of responsc and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requircments applicable to federal agencies, including, but
not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy
Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts
160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information
and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and

~ scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two (2) hours of the time
that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a confidential information
breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any
State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform
their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section VI.A.2 above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
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c¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or PFI
are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive
such information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DFHEHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
dertvative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required 1n scction IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must bc maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep thcir credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must.further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R, §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
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Identify Incidents;
Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Eallb o .

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact program and policy:

(Insert Office or Program Name)
(Insert Title)
DHHS-Contracts@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Information Sccurity issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

E. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:
DHHSInformationSecurityOfficc@dhhs.nh.gov
DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Jeffrey A. Meyers 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-334S Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Katja 8. Fox www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

January 22, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, to enter into a sole source, retroactive
amendment with Granite Pathways, c/o Fedcap, Vendor ID# 228900-B001, 10 Ferry Street,
Concord NH 03301, for the continuation of Regional Access Point Services to assist
individuals with substance use disorders to obtain the help they need by increasing the price
limitation by $391,887 from $1,606,700 to $1,998,587 and extending the completion date from
March 31, 2018 to June 30, 2018, retroactive to January 10, 2018, effective upon Govemor
and Executive Council approval. The original contract was approved by Govemor and
Executive Council on July 13, 2016 (Item #6C) and subsequently amended on June 21, 2017
(tem #41) and December 20, 2017 (ltem #5G). The funding for the amendment is 100%
Federal Funds.

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL

Revised
Increasef Decrease Modified
SFY ) Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2017 102-500734 Prog Svc $1,200,000 $0 $1,200,000
Subtotal $1,200,000 30 31,200,000

05-95-92-920510-3384 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN Tl010035 CFDA 93.959

Revised

Increasel/ Decrease Modified

SFY | Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
g Contracts for

2018 102-500734 Prog Svc $406,700 $0 $406,700

Subtotal $406,700 50 $406,700




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page2of 3

05-95-92-920510-2559 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, OPIOID STR
GRANT 100% Federal Funds FAIN TI080246 CFDA 93.788

Revised
Increase/ Decrease Modified
SFY | Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2018 102-500734 Prog Svc %0 $301,887 $ 391,887
Subtotal $0 $391,887 $391,887
Total $1,606,700 $391,887 $1,998,587

- EXPLANATION

This amendment is sole source to allow the Contractor to continue to provide Regionai
Access Point Services to any individual living, working, or otherwise seeking services in New
Hampshire. This amendment is retroactive because the Department is working to consolidate
Regional Access Point services into a single contract following notification of service
termination by Southwestern Community Services and the other contractor being placed into
receivership due to financial concerns. To ensure continuity of care and that there was no
interruption of services, Granite Pathways began taking on services in the Manchester and
Keene areas previously covered by other contractors in early January, 2018. The Manchester
Regional Access Point program was a critical component of the Safe Stations program and
this amendment is retroactive to the date that Granite Pathways began incurring costs for the
Manchester transition. In addition, a recent amendment had reduced Granite Pathway's
service area to only four public health regions. Subsequent to the above terminations and
reductions, the Department received permission to use Federal funding to continue services
statewide.

The original contract was sole source because it was necessary to implement these
services as quickly as possible. Originally there were three vendors. These Vendors were
chosen based on their capacity to implement Regional Access Point Services statewide in a
highly efficient manner. As of September 2017, three thousand two hundred five (3,205)
1individualis; have accessed these services and been assisted in identifying and entering
clinically appropriate substance use disorders treatment and recovery support services.
Feedback from clients indicates that the Regional Access Point Services made the process
significantly easier for them and that the support provided to them during the process was
invaluable.

Regional Access Point Services include screening clients for substance use disorders,
completing evaluations to recommend a level of treatment or recovery support services,
referring clients to providers for treatment services or recovery support services, and enrolling
clients with third party payers, case management, and crisis support. This scope of work in this
contract has been expanded to explicitly require support for Safe Stations in Manchester given
the critical nature of that programming.

The attached Contract includes language that reserves the right to renew each contract
for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The
contract has already been renewed for nine (9) months. The Department is exercising three
(3) additional months of the fifteen months (15) months remaining of renewal.
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and the Honorable Council
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access
Point Services would not be available to individuals. The inability to access these services will
negatively impact an individual's ability to achieve and/or maintain recovery from substance
use disorders.

Areas served. Statewide .

Source of Funds: The total funding for the contract is 16% General Funds; 84%
Federal Funds (CFDA #93.953 FAIN TI010035 U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Block Grants for
Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse, Substance Abuse Block Grant SABG and
CFDA #93.788 FAIN T1080246 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Opioid STR Grant).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. ’

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox '
Director

Approved by:
: Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communitias and families
in providing opportunities for citivens lo achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Reglonzal Access Polint Services

State of Now Hampshire
Dopartment of Hoelth and Human Sorvices
Amendment #3 to the
Substance Use Disorder - Reglonal Access Point Services Contract

This 3" Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services contract
(herelnafier referred to as “Amendment #3%) deted this 10" day of January, 2018, is by end betwean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafier referred to as the
"State" or "Department”) and Granite Pathways (herelnaftsr referred to as “the Contractor”), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at c/o Fedcap Rehabilfation Services, Inc., 10 Farry Strest,
Concord, NH, 03301,

WHEREAS, pursuent to an agreemsnt (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 13, 2016 (ltem #6C) and amendad by an agreement (Amendment #1 to the Contract) approved
on June 21, 2017 (lem #41) and by an agreement {Agreement #2 to the Contract) approved on
Decembar 20, 2017 (ltem #4G) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditlons specified in the Contract as amended and In consldsration of ceartaln sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditione of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paregraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3, the
Departmant reserves the right to renew the Contract for up 1o two (2) edditional years, eubject to the
continued avallabifity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and Govemor and Executive Councll
approval; and

WHEREAS, the parties agrae to increass the prica limitation, axhend the completion date for three (3)
monlhs, and mod!fy the scope of work; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
conlained In the Contract and set forth herein, the partiee hereto agree ae follows:

1. General Provialons (Form P-37), Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2, (s'ieneml Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, increased by $391,887 from $1,606,700 to read
1,098,587,

3. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.9, to read E. Marla Relnemann, Esq., Director of Contracts
and Procurement,

General Provisions {(Form P-37), Block 1.10 to read 603-271-8330.
Delete Exhibit A In s entinety and replace with Exhibit A — Amendment #1.
Delete Exhibit B —~ Amandmant #1 in ts entirety end replace with Exhibit B — Amendment #2.

L

Delete Exhibkt B-2 In ts entirety and replace with Exhibit B-2 - Amendment #1.

Grenfts Palhvways
Amandmant #3
$5-2017-BOAS-01-REGIO-O1 Pege 1003



Now Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Substenco tss Disorder - Reglonal Accesy Point Servicos

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemnor and Executive Councll approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire -
Department of Health and Human Services
sty X R e
Date’' Katja S, Fox
Director

G Pa

thlllE

“Date :
TCEO S¥vesn

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature: Q‘h"“'—'ﬁ‘k me MNe Ma\\c\] .

State of thfﬁ 3925.‘ , County of A"\ i , ﬁ: on before the
undersigned ¢ | personally appeared the identifled directly sbove, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whosa name Is signed above, and acknowledged that afhe executed this document in the
capaciy Indicated above.

G, Uirro—

Sigfature£f Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

L] 'v
Na%nd Titls of No; tary or Juﬁﬁ of the Peace

My Commission Expires: I'Z«}L’/L‘-'

X

AMY REISNER
Notary Publls - State of Kew York
NO. D1RE6215281

Cualified In Kings Coungy
My Commisslon Expires ltiw[u

Granits Pathweays
Amendment #3
SS-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 ) Paga20f3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Reglonal Access Point Services

The precading Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
axecution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Y (/g ﬂ /] /)/ (/Uﬁ/

Date Neme: [/1h. (wford
Tiie: £,k fa_ﬂgnrf‘-!ﬁ Cucm\

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment wae approved by the Govemnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dete of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dats Name:
Title:
Granta Patiwarys
Amondment #3

55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Pagadold



Nowt Hampshire Departmant of Health and Human Servicos
Substancs Uss Disorder - Statewide Reglonal Access Point Servicss
88-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.6.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisiative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith,

The Contractor shall pursue any and afl appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehablitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such pubiic sources of funds.

For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean calendar days,
except where business days are spacifically hoted. For these purposes, a business
day shall generally mean any day from Monday to Friday, except Holiday observed
by the government of the State of New Hampshire.

For the purposes of this contract, all data entry, documentation and recording shall
be completed using the Web Information Technology System (WITS).

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain one or more service sites, which shall
comply with all fire, health, and safety codes which shall include but not be limited to
being handicap and wheslchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the Department prior to entering
into any agreement regarding service site relocation.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event policy in Exhibit A-
1, Sentinel Event Policy,

The Contractor shall participate in the Regional Public Health Network(s} associated
with the towns served by the Regional Access Points (RAP) under this contract,
which shall include, but not be limited to:

1.8.1.  Working with Regional Public Health Network staff in the development of a
resiliency and recovery oriented system of care (RROSC) in the region(s).

1.8.2.  Participating in the Regional Continuum of Care Workgroup(s).

The Contractor shall engage in quality assurance and management activities, which
shall inciude but not be limited to:

1.9.1.  Site reviews by the Department.

1.2.2.  Othsr quality assurance and management activities, as determined by the
Department.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A ~ Amendment #1 Contraclor Initials: d}n
5§8-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page 1 of & Date:



New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Uas Disonrder - Statewide Roglonal Access Polnt Services
$3-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

2. Services to ba Provided

21.

22

2.3.

24,

2.5,

2.6.

The Contractor shall provide statewide Regional Access Points (RAP) for the
provision of Opioid Use Disorder (QUD) and Substance Use Disorder (SUD)
information, screening, and referra! services to any individual living, working, or
ctherwise secking services in the state of New Hampshire.

The Contractor shall coordinate RAP services with the Manchester and Nashua Safe
Stations programs as appropriate.

22.1. The Contractor shall submit a plan to coordinate RAP services for
Department approval within thirty (30) days from the date that Governor
and Executive Council approve this amendment.

The Contractor shall provide Regional Access Point (RAP) services to assist:

23.1. Individuals with SUD or OUD who are age twelve {12) or older, or under
age twelve (12) with the consent of a parent or other legal guardian, and

232, Residents of, or homeless individuals in, New Hampshire.

The Confractor shall cooperate with the Department to conduct outreach activities
utilizing an outreach plan and materials developed by the Department to promote
and market Regional Access Point (RAP) services,

The Contractor shall maintain multiple information channels by which an individual
may request information that shall include, but not be limited to telephone, e-mail,
and in-person. The Contracter shall:

2.5.1. Respond to all requests for information within twenty-four (24) hours of
receiving requests for information.

252. \Uilize the statewide addiction crisis hotline as the primary telephone
access point.

2,5.3. Ensure information available through all information channels includes, but
is not limited to types and locations of services available:

253.1. For SUD or OUD treatment and recovery support.
2.532. Tosupport friends, family members and other concerned individuals.

The Contractor shall respond to requests for SUD or OUD treatment services by
scheduling a screening appointment for the client. The Contractor shall:

26.1. Ensure the screening appointment is scheduled within forty-eight (48) hours
of the client's initial request for services.

26.2. Provide an appointment date that is within ten (10) days of scheduling the
appointment.

2.6.3. Ensure the screening appointment:

26.3.1. Can be completed by the client in person; by telephone, or face-to-
face.

26.3.2. Is completed by a Certified Recovery Suppoﬁ Worker (CRSW), who
shall, at a minimunm:

Granlte Pathways Exhibit A — Amendmant #1 Contractor Initisls: C’ i ’ l
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2.7. The Confractor shall schedule, through Memorandums of Understanding with SUD
or OUD freatment providers, evaluations of clients who sc¢reen positive for SUD or
OUD within farty-eight (48) hours of the completed screening in Section 2.6, as
appropriate. The Contractor shall ensure;

2,7.1. Evaluations are completed within ten (10) days of scheduling the
evaluation.

2.7.2. Evaluations are completed by a Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(LADC), Master Licensed Alcoho! and Drug Counselor (MLADC), or
licensed mental health professional who has demonstrated competency in
the treatment of SUD or QUD, as applicable.

2.7.3. Clients are eveluated in all American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM,
October 2013) dimensions.

2.7.4. Evaluations are completed using one or more evidence-based evaluation
tools. '

2,7.5. Evaluations meet ‘Addiction Counseling Competencies, TAP 21’ standards
hitp://siore.samhea gov/product/TAP-21 -Addictio unseling-
Competencies/SMA15-4171).

2.7.6. Evaluations include a DSM-5 Substance Use Disorder diagnosis when
appropriate.

2.7.7. Recommendations are provided to clients diagnosed as having a substance
use disorder, as appropriate, which must include, but are not be limited to,
recommendations for; '

2.17.71. Aninitial ASAM level of care.

2.7.7.2, Recovery support andfor other needed services.

27.7.3.  Interim services if the indicated ASAM level of care is not immediately
available to the client.

2.7.8. Diagnosis information is entered into WITS within three (3) business days
of completing each evaluation.

2.7.9, Coordination with the Department's contractor, Familles in Transition, to
ensure client evaluations are completed when dlients enter RAP services
through the Manchester Safe Stations program.

Granile Pathways Exhiblt A — Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:; cm

26.3.2.1. Gather client demographic, contact, and emergency contact
information;

2,8.3.2.2. Identify payer sources available fo the client; and

26.3.2.3. Use an evidence-based screening tool, as approved by the
Depariment, to determine the likelihood of a substance use
disorder, as defined by the DSM 5.

2.6.4. Document client profile, intake and admission information in WITS within
three (3) days of completing the screening.
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2.7.8.1. The Contractor shall submit a plan to coordinate client evaluations in

Section 2.7.9 for Department approval within thirty (30) days from the
date Govemor and Executive Council approve this amendment.

28. The Contractor shall provide referral services to clients In order to meet the
recommendations that result from the evaiuation in Section 2.7.7. The Contractor

shall:

28.1,
28.2.

Ensure referral services are provided by a CRSW.
Ensure referral sefvices include, but are not limited to:

28.21. ldentifying provider agencies that can meet the evaluation

recommendations in Section 2.7.7.

2.8.2.2. Contacting the provider agency on behalf of the client, as appropriate.
2.82.3. Assisting the client with making contact with the provider agency, as

appropriate.

28.24. Supporting the client in meeting the admission/entrancefintake

2.8.3.

2.84.

requirements of the provider agency.

Refer individuals diagnosed with OUD to Medication Assisted Treatment
providers when deemed appropriate by the evaluating clinician and the
client.

Develop and maintain a database of provider agencies by region to meet
the needs of clients, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.84.1. Substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services
2.84.2. Physical health services

2843  Behavioral health services

268.44, Employment and education services

2845 Housing services

2.85.

Ensure Memcrandums of Understanding are executed with SUD or OUD,
as applicable, freatment and peer recovery support services providers in
the communities within each region served to ensure clients can access
interim and other services within seven (7) days of completed evaluations
described in Section 2.7.

29. The Contractor shall assist clients to enrofl with payer services. The Contractor shall:

29.1.

292

Assess clients for probable eligibility for public or private insurance, such as
Medicaid; the New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP); and
Qualified Health Plans available through the Marketplace.

Assist clients with enrollment with the appropriate payer. Assistance shall
include, but not be limited to:

2.92.1. Providing one-on-one support to clients throughout the enroliment

Grante Pathways

process.

Exhibit A — Amendment 1 Contractor Initials:
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2.8.2.2.  Providing clarification on information that needs to be provided to the
payer agency to ensure enroliment can be completed by the client.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide Continuous Recovery Monitoring services to clients as
follows:

2.10.1. Attempt to contact each client a minimum of three (3) times over the course
of one week. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1.1. Attempt contact by telephone at a reasonable time when the client
would normally be available,

2.10.1.2. Aftempt a second contact, as necessary, by telephone at a
reasonable time when the client would normally be available no
sooner than two {2) days and no iater than three (3) days after the first
attempt in Section 2.10.1.1.

2.10.1.3. Attempt a third contact, as necessary, by telephone at a reasonable
time when the client would normally be available, no sooner than two
(2) days and no later than three (3) days after the second attempt in
Section 2,10.1.2.

2.10.1.4. Not exceed tweive (12) attempts in a thirty (30) day period.
2.10.2, Contact clients as frequently as weekly and no less frequently than;
2.10.2.1. Three (3) months post-admission to RAP services.
2.10.2.2. Six (6) months post- admission to RAP services.
2.10.2.3. Twelve (12) months post-admission to RAP services.
2.10.3. inguire on the status of each client's recovery.
2.10.4. Identify any client needs.
2.10.5. Assist the client with addressing the needs identified in Section 2.10.4.

2.10.6. Provide early intervention to clients who have relapsed or whose recovery
is at nisk, as identified in Sections 2.10.3 - 2.10.4, and record the same.

2,10.7. Complete the client follow-up in WITS within three (3) days of each
completed contact identified in Section 2.10.1.

2.11. The Contractor shall enter client discharge information into WITS within three (3)
days of client discharge.

3. Data and Reporting Requiraments : i
3.1.  The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not iimited to:
3.1.1.  Time lapses for services including, but not limited to:
3.1.1.1.  Initial client contact to screening
3.1.1.2.  Screening to evaluation
3.1.1.3. Evaluation to interim servicas
3.1.1.4.  Evaluation to regular services,

Granlte Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #1 Contractor [nitials: C’ ] ' Z
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3.1.2. Type of payer enroliment assessment and/or assistance provided, as
described in Section 2.9,

3.2.  The Contractor shall provide monthly reports identifying SUD or OUD treatment and
peer recovery ¢upport seivices providers with whom Memorandums of
Understanding have been executed to provide evaluation and treatment seivices.
Reports shall include, but not be limited to:

3.2.1.  Name, location, and contact information of the provider.
3.2.2. Specific servicas provided by the provider.

3.3. The Contractor shall gather, monitor, and submit data to the Department monthly.
Participant data will be submitted in de-identified, aggregate form to the Department
using a Department-approved method. The data being collected includes all data
points required in the Treatment Episode Data for Admissions which includes, but is
not limited to:

3.3.1. Treatment Setting

3.32. Number of prior treatment episodes
3.3.3. Primary source of referral

3.34. Age at admission

3.3.5. Pregnancy status

3.3.6. Race/Ethnicity

3.3.7. Education

3.3.8. Employment status

3.3.9. Primary substance

3.3.10. Route of administration

3.3.11. Frequency of use

3.3.12. Age at first use

3.3.13. Co~Occurring Substancs Abuse and Mental Health Status
3.3.14. Veteran status

3.3.15. Living arrangements

3.3.16. Prmary source of income

3.3.17. Health insurance status

3.3.18. Primary source of payment
3.3.19. Details for those not-in-labor-force
3.3.20. Marital status

3.3.21. Days waiting to enter treatment
3.3.22. Number of amrests in past 30 days

Grantte Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #1 Coniractor Inltials; 67"/ )
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3.3.23. Frequency at self-help programming 30 days prior to admission

3.4. The Contractor shall report on federally-required data points specific to this funding
opportunity quarterly and send the results in de-identified, aggregate form to the
Department using a Department-approved method. The required data points include,
but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Number of participants with OUD's:
34.11. Intotal
3.4.1.2. Referred to and receiving MAT .
3.4.1.3. Receiving care coordination/case management.
3.4.1.4. Recelving peer recovery support services.
4. Minimum Porformance Measuros

4.1, The Contractor shall comply with Continuous Recovery Monitoring comtacts
described In Section 2.10, as follows:

41.1. Twenty-five parcent (25%) of clients shall be contacted three (3) months
' after admission.

4.1.2. Ten percent (10%) of clients shall be contacted (6) months after admission.

4.1.3. Five percent (5%) of clients shail be contacted twelve (12) months after
admission.

8. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall respond to all requests for information described in Section 2.5
within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving the requests.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure screening appointments described in Section 2.6 are
scheduled within forty-eight (48) hours of receiving dlients’ requests for services.

53. The Contractor shall ensure all client services provided through this contract are
documented and/or recorded within three (3) days of providing the service.

6. Liquidatsd Damagas

6.1. The Contractor and the Department agree that the WITS shall be the source of
record with data polls taking place on the tenth (10™) day of the month, beginning
with August 10, 2016.

6.2. The Contractor and the Depariment agree that it will be extremely impracticable and
difficult to determine actual damages that the Department will sustain in the event
that the vendor fails to maintain the required performance standards in Section 4,
Performance Standards, throughout the life of the contract. Any breach by the
Contractor will delay and disrupt the Department's operations and obligations and
lead to significant damages. Therefors, the parties agree that the liquidated damages
as specified in the sections below are reasonable.

Granite Pathwaye BExhibit A — Amendment #1 Contractor ln‘rﬁals:_________énl
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6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

a.7.

6.8

a.8.

Assessment of liquidated damages shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, such other
remedies as may be available to the Department. Except and to the extent expressly
provided herein, the Department shall be entifled to recover liquidated damages
cumulatively under each section applicable to any given incident as described in
Section 6.8.

The Department shail make all assessments of liquidated damages. Should the
Department determine that liquidated damages may, or will be assessed; the
Department shall netify the Contractor as specified in Section 7, Noltifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages, below.

The Contractor shall submit a written Comective Action Plan to the Department within
five (5) business days of receiving notification as specified in Section 7, Notifications
and Remedies for Liquidated Damages, for review and approval pror to
implementation of the Corrective Action Plan.

The Contractor agrees that as determined by the Department, failure to provide
services that meet the performance standards in Section 4, Performance Standards,
shall result in in liquidated damages as specified in Section 7, Notifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages. The Department's decision to assess liquidated
damages must be reasonable, based in fact and made in good faith.

The remedies specified in Section 7, Notifications and Remedies for Liquidated
Damages, shall apply until the failure is cured or resulting dispute is resolved in the
Contractor's favor.

Liquidated damages in the amount of $500 per month for failure to meet the
Minimum Performance Measures identified in Section 4. It is agreed by the parties
that damages may only be assessed by the Department related to Section 4 above
and that the amount of damages Is limited to the amounts delineated in this Section
6.8 and that no other liquidated damages may be assessed.

The amount of liquidated damages assessed by the Department to the .Contractor
shall not exceed the price limitation in Form P-37, General Provisions, block 1.8,
Price Limitation.

7. Notifications and Remodies for Liquidated Damages,

7.1.  Prior to the imposition of liquidated damages or any other remedies under this
Contract, including termination for breach, the Dapartment shall issue written notice
of ramedies that shall include, as applicable:

7.1.1. A citation to the Contract provision violated.

7.1.2. The remedies to be applied and the date the remedies shall be imposed.

7.1.3. The basis for the Department's determination that the remedies shall be
imposed.

7.14. A request for a Comective Action Plan.

7.1.5. The timeframe and procedure for the Ceontractor to dispute the
Department’s determination. The Contractor's dispute of liquidated
damages or remedies shall not stay the effective date of the proposed
liguidated damages or remedies.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Amendment #1 Contractor Iniﬁals:_cm_]_

55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page Bof9 Date: l Jyl ls‘



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Uss Disorder - Statawids Reglonal Access Point Sarvices
88.2017-BDAS-04-REGI0-01

Exhibit A — Amendment #1

7.1.6.

If the failure Is not resolved within the cure period, liquidated damages may
be imposed retroactively to the date of failure to perform and continue until
the failure is cured or any resulting dispute is resolved in the Contractor's
favor.

7.2.  In connection with any action taken or decision made by the Department with respect
to this Contract, within ninety (80) days following the aclion or decisions, the
Contractor may protest such action or decision by the delivery of a notice of protest
to the Department and by which the Contracior may protest said action or decision
and/or request an informal hearing with the Director of the Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services.

7.21.

7.2.2.

7.2.3.

7.24.

7.2.5.

Granite Pathways

§5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page 9 of B Date; U

The Contractor shall provide the Department with an explanation of its
posttion protesting the Department's actlon or declsion.

The Director shall determine a time that is mutually agreeable to the parties
during which they may present their views on the disputed issues. It is
understood that the presentation and discussion of the disputed issues will
be informal in nature.

The Director shall provide written notice of the time, format and location of
the presentation.

At the conclusion of the presentations, the Director shall consider all
evidence and shall render a written recommendation as soon as
practicable, but in no event more than thirty (30) calendar days after the
conclusion of the presentation.

The Dirsctor may appoint a designee 1o hear and determine the matter.
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Method and Conditions Precsdent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhiblt A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with genera! and federal funds. Department access to supporting
funding for this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) (https:/www.cfda.goy) #83.059 and 03.788 U.S.
Department of Health and Human Sarvices; Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration; Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance
Abuse; Substance Abuse Block Grant (SABG).

2.1. Funds remaining from the contract categorized under CFDA#83.859, can be used
to pay for services under this Agreement for individuals who have a Substance Use
Disorder (SUD) or Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) up through:such time that the funds
are completely used to pay for services.

2.2. Furds supplied in Amendment #3, upon the effective date of said amendment,
categorized under CFDA#93.788, can only be used to pay for services under this
Agreement for individuals who have QUD.

3 The Contractor shall use and apply alt contract funds for authorized direct and indirect
costs to provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit B-1,
Budget and Exhibit B-2, Budget.

4, The Contractor shall bill Medicaid and other payers for services provided that are
reimbursable by that payer. The Contractor shail:

4.1. Develop billing protocols;
4.2. implement a biliing process; and
4.3. Provide a copy of policies and protocols to the Department.

5. The time and other resources expended in delivering the services that are billabie to
Medicaid or other payer shall not be charged against this contract.

8. The contractor shall submit a plan for department approval showing how they will identify
alternative payers; bill services to those payers; and ensure that the time and resources
for those gervices are not billed against this contract.

The Contractor shall enroll in Medicaid and bill for services if approved.

8. The Contractor shall apply to contract with Managed Care Organizations (MCOs) for
reimbursable services within thirty (30) days from the date that Governor and Executive
Council approve this amendment. If the Contractor Is approved, they shall begin billing -
for services immediately. '

9. The Contractor shall develop Department approved billing policies and protocols and
implement a billing “process to bill Medicald and other payers for reimbursable
services. The Contractor shall provide the established policies and protocols to the
Department within thirty (30) days from the date that Governor and Executive Council
approve this amendment.

Granite Pathways Exhiblt B - Amendment #2 Contracior Initlals CD‘“
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Payment for services provided in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be
made as follows:

10.1, Payments shall be made on cost reimbursement basis only, for allowable costs,
expenses and fees in accordance with Exhibits B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-2,
Budget.

10.2. Allowable costs and expenses shali include those expenses detailed in Exhibit B-1,
Budgst and Exhibit B-2, Budget

10.3. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices using invoice forms provided by the
Department.

10.4. The Contractor shall submit supporting documentation and required reports in
Exhiblt A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Data and Reporting Requirements, that
support evidence of actual expenditures, in accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget
and Exhibit B-2, Budgst for the previous month by the tenth {10th) working day ot
the current month.

-10.5. The Contractor shalt submit invoices for services outlinad in Exhibit A, Scope of

Services in accordance with budget line items in Exhibit B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-
2, Budget preferably by e-mail on Department approved invoices to:

Finance Manager

Division of Behavioral Health

Department of Heatth and Human Services

105 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301

laurie.he hhs.nh.gov
The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40} days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Compietion Date, Block 1.7.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federa! law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budgst in Exhibit B-4 and Exhibit B-2, and within
the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made
without obtaining approval of the Govermor and Executive Council.

When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.
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EXHIBIT B-2 Amandment #1 Budget

New Hampshlre Dapartment of Health and Human Services

Blddar Name: Grantis Pathways

Budpet for: Substance Use Disordst - Reglonal Accass Point Sarvices

Budgat Perlod: July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

) 472 .270.88

w

56 673.59

2. E£mployes Benefits

$ 147.384.21 17.888.11

3. Consuliants

&
3
8

4. Equipment

Rental

anlenlenlen

Repalr and Maintenanca

RN
]

Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:

h| N

(N

inlenlcn
[

Educational

]
*»
[

Lab

Pharmacy

Medica)

Office

22.551.18 2,708.14 25,257.32

|8. Travel

onlen
o |n

11,803.54

7. Ocoupancy

R R BN

~1416.42 13,210.96

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Poslage

Subscriptions

Audh end Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

8. Software

10. Marketing/Technology

$ 13,484.53 1,618.14 15.102.687

11, Staff Education and Training

]
wnlenlinlnlenlanlenlenlcalan

B AN {P RN AR

12. Subcontracts/Agresments

$ 45,520.77 5,462.49 50,983.28

13. Other

Professional Fees

TOTAL

WA A 1A [ h| B A h |0 A A ] 8| R A |0 A [ ch AL Bl
[

o B |ala
'

$ 713,024.11% 88,682.89

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

BExhibl B-2 Amandmant #1 Budget
§5-2017-BDAS-01.REGIO-D1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330t
603-271-9544  1-800-8512-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.,dhhs.nh.govy

Jeffrey A, Meyers
Commissioaer

Kotja 5. Fox
Director

November 22, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depariment of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Drug and Alcoho! Services, to amend sole source contracts by exercising a renewal option
with the vendors listed below, for the continuation of Regional Access Point Services to assist
individuals with substance use disorders to obtain the help they need, by extending the compietion date
from December 31, 2017 fo March 31, 2018, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council approval.
There is no change to the price limitation.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Executive Council as follows:
Southwestern Community Services, inc. on March 9, 2016 (ltem #22), National Council on Alcoholism
and Drug Dependence/Greater Manchester on April 6, 2048 (item #3), and Granite Pathways on July
13, 2018 (tem #6C). On June 21, 2017 (item #441) Governor and Executive Council approved
amendments for all three contracts.

Summary of Contract Vendors:

. ‘{‘0—

Current Increase Revised
Budgeted | (Decrease) Budget
Vendor Amount Amount Amount
Granite Pathways $1.606,700 $0 | $1,606,700
Naticnal Council on Alcoholism and Drug
Dependence/Greater Manchester $329,945 $0 $329,845
Southwestern Communily Services, Inc. $261,500 %0 $261.500
Grand Total $2,198,145

$0| 32,198,145
Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2018. Please see attached financial detail.

EXPLANATION

These three {3) Amendments are sole source to allow the Contractors to continue to provide
Regional Access Point Services to any individual living, working, or otherwise seeking services in New
Hampshire. These were pilot programs that began in 2016 and our experience with these pilots has
pointed out the need to evaluate if this model is the most efficient and fiscally responsible for the
delivery of regional access services. Extending the contracts will help to keep services available to
clients for a period of time while the Department evaluates these programs and considers altemative
models. Also, one amendment with Granite Pathways reduces the service area to Central New
Hampshire, Carroll County, Greater Sullivan, and South Central. These services areas are those public



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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health regions where there is not a contracted treatment or other regional access point services
provider who may be able to assist clients with accessing services. The Agreements are being
extended without additional funding because current spending usage shows that the Contractors will
have enough funding for the additional three months.

The original contracts were sole source because it was necessary to implement these services
as quickly as possible. These Vendors were chosen based on their capacity to implement Regionat
Access Point Services statewide in a highly efficient manner. As of September 2017, 3,205 individuals
have accessed these services and been assisted in identifying and entering clinically appropriate
substance use disorders treatment and recovery support services. Feedback from clients indicates that
the Regional Access Point Services made the process significantly easier for them and that the support
provided to them during the process was invaluable.

Regional Access Point Services include screening clients for substance use disorders,
completing evaluations to recommend a level of treatment or recovery support services, referring
clients to providers for treatment services or recovery support services, and enrolling clients with third
party payers, case management, and crisis support.

The attached Contracts include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up
to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availabifity of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department is exercising three
(3) months of the eighteen months (18) months remaining on the two year renewal.

Shouid the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access Point
Services would not be available to individuals. The inability to access these services will negatively
impact an individual's ability to achieve andfor maintain recovery from substance use disorders.

Areas served: Carroll County, Central New Hampshire, Greater Sullivan County, South Central,
Monadnock and Greater Manchester Public Health Regions.

Source of Funds: 16% Generat Funds; 64% Federal Funds (CFDA #93.859 FAIN T1010035
U.S. Depariment of Heaith and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse, Substance Abuse
Block Grant SABG) and 20% Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds (Liguor Commission).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully éubmitted,

Approved by;

The Department of Health and Hurman Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporfunities for ciiizens lo achieve health and independence.
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Financial Details

05-95-49-431510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SvVC,
BUREAD OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS $00% Other Funds

National Council on Alcoholism & Drug Dependence/Gr Manchesler V#177265-R001 PO 21050218
Stat:;:: o Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase! Decrease Rewsae:dl;:: fed
2015 102-500734 Contracts lor Prog $32,500 50 $32.500
2017 102-500734 Contracts for Prog $130,000 s0 $130,000
Sub-total $162.500 30 $162,500
Scuthwestern Communily Services, lnc V#177511-P0Y ' PO #1049473
Sm::ai: = ClassiAccount Title Budget Amount Increasef Decrease Rews;fl;;:gmm
2016 102500734 C"“"“;ii“ Prog $52,100 s0 $52.100
2017 102500734 Convacss c’°‘ Prog $125,000 50 $125,000
Sub-total $177,100 30 $177,100
To:;l:nc;v. $335,500 59 18,600

BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCCHOL SYCS, CLINICAL SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93.959

IliS—BS-#B-#STH 0-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC,

Granite Pathways, ¢/o Fedgap Vit 228900-B001

PO #1063366

State Flscal

Revised Modifled

) I { Dec
Year ~|™  .ClassiAccount Title Budget Amount nereasel ecruase Budgat
2016 102-500734 c°“"a°5‘3:°’ Prog 50 50 50
2017 102-500734 C"“"“;ié‘” Prog $1,200,000 50 $1.200,000
Sub-total $1.200.000 50 $1.200,000
National Coundl on Atcoholism & Drug Dependence/Gr Manchester V#177265-R001 PO #1050218
State Flscal Intsvasel Devteass Ravised Madified
Yeur ClassiAcenunt Title Budpet Amount Budget
2016 102-500734 C"”"“é: é‘” Prog $7.095 $0 57,085
2017 102-500734 Cm”acéz:‘" Prog $28,350 50 $28,350
Sub-total $35,445 50 $35.445
Southwestern Cammunity Services, inc V#177511-P0Q1 PO #1049473
State Fiscal - ncreasel Decroase| FLe¥sed Modified
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Budget
2016 102-500734 Contracts for Prog 310,100 50 $10,100
2017 102.500734 ““"a‘gic’c" Prog $24,300 50 $24,300
Sub-total $34.400 $0 $34.400
Tot! Clinical
 eves 1,269,84 50 $1.269.845
Anachment A
Fimancial Detail

Page loll
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Financial Details

[05-95-92-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC,
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS 190% Other Funds

National Councit on Alcohalism & Orug Dependence/Gr Manchester V#177265-R001 PO #1050218
stte Fiscal ' - Increasel Docrease| Tevised Modifled
Year Class/account Title Budget Amount Budget
2018 102-500734 C“""acs'i :"’ prog $66,980 50 $66.980
Sub-total 366,980 50 $56.980
Southwasiemn Community Services, inc V#177511.P001 PO #1049473
State Fiscal Revised Modified
f
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase! Dacrease Budget
2018 102-500734 Contracts c"” Prag $24.770 S0 $24,770
Sub-total $24.770 S0 524,770
Total Gov.
Comm $81,750 50 §91,750

BUREAU DF DRUG & ALCOHOL SYCS, CLINICAL SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93.959

FQS-&Z-BNSW—HBJI HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERYICES, HEALTH AND HUMAK SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: 01 OF COMM BASED CARE 5VC,

Page 2of 2

Grarile Pathways, c/o Fedecap V# 228300-B001 PQ #1053366
State Fisca! Revised Modifled
I ! Da
Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount ..ncrease croase Budget
2018 102-560734 Contracts for Prog $406.700 $0 $406.700
Sub-total 5406 700 $0 $406,700
Nalicnal Councll on Alcohdlism & Drug Dependence/Gr Manchester V#177265-R001 PO 81050218
State Fiscal Revised Modifled
! 1]
Year Class/Accoum Title Budget Amsunt nerease/ Decrease Budget
2018 102-500734 °°""acs't;°' prog $65,020 50 $65.020
Sub-tota) S65.020 30 $65.020
=
Southwestem Community Sesvices, Inc V#177511-P001 PO 41049473
§tate Fiscal Revised Modifiad
!
Yeal CluseJArcuunl Title Bulyol Atunt Incroase Lacroase Rudget
2018 102-500734 Contr a‘éi (’:‘” Prog $25210 50 $25,23C
Sub-total 525,220 30 §25.230
Total Ciinical
Svcs §a96 950 30 $496.950
Total Contract 145 $0 198,14
Grand Total by Vender -
PO Vendors Vendor # Current Price Limitation ! Increase/Cecrease | New Price Limitation
PQ 81053366 [Granile Pathways 228900-B0C1 £1,606.700 $0 51,606,700
National Courcil on Alcoholism &
PO #1050218 Drug Dependence - 177265-R001 $329,545 30 $325.845
PO #1049473_[Southwestern Community Svs 177511-POO1 $261,500 30 $261,500
Total $2,198,145 $0 $2,198,145
Attachment A
Financial Detail




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

December 7, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner "
Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:
This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)

has approved your agency's request to amend three (3) sole souree contracts with the vendors listed in the
table below and referenced as DolT No. 2017-095B.

& Vendors

Granite Pathways
National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence / Greater Manchester
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

The purpose of these amendments is to allow the vendars to continue to provide
substance use disorder information, screening, evaluation and referral services to any
individual living, working or otherwise seeking services in New Hampshire by extending
the completion date from December 31, 2017 to March 31, 2018,

There is no funding increase associated with this amendment, and shall become effective
upon Governor and Council approval through March 31, 2018

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

DG/kaf
DolT #2017-095B

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolIT

“Innovative Technologies Today far New Hampshire's Tamorrow"™



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Usa Disordor - Regional Accoss Point Sarviges

State of New Hempshire
Departmant of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the
Substance Use Disorder - Ragional Access Point Services Contract
This 2™ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder - Regional Access Point Services contract {hereinafter
referred to as “"Amendment 27) dated this 1* day of September, 2017, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Depariment®) and
Granite Pathways (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor™), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at
clo Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc., 10 Ferry Street, Concord, NH, (3301,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July
13, 2016 (ltem #5C) and amended by an agreement {Amendment #1 to the Cantracl) approved on June 21, 2017
(tem #41), the Contractor agreed lo perform cerlain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Conltract as amended and in consideration of cerlain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEIiEAS. pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3, the Department
reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject fo the continued availability of
funds, satisfactory performance of services and Govermor and Executive Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the completion date of the agreement by three {3) months.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Centract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. General Provisions {Form P-37), Block 1.7, to read March 31, 2018.

2. Delete inits entirety Exhibit A Sections 2.1.1, 2.1.2,2.1.6,2.1.7, 2.1.8, 2.1.9and 2.1.11

3. Delete in its entirety Exhibit A Section 2.1.10 and replace with:
2.1,10 South Central, which includes: Atkinson, Chester, Danville, Derry, Hampstead, Londonderry, Plaistow,
Salem, Sandown, and Windham.

4. Exhibit B-2 Budget changes the Budget Period to read: July 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018.

5. Add Exhibit K DHHS Information Security Requirements

Remainder of the page left intentionally blank.

Granita Palhways
Amandmant #2
55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page10f3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Reglonal Access Point Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have sel their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1 f247 NG T

Date . Katja S. Fox
Director

1} ’3,0“}
Date

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of H%L County of on Meytmbes 3, 2013 before the undersigned officer,

personally appedsed the person identified directly €bove, or satisfacterily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that sfhe executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

re of Nogry Public or Justice of the Peace

; 8]
Name and of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: _ {2 ; UKI i1

AMY AEISNER
Notary Public - State of New York
NO. 0$REB215281

Dualitied in Kings Ceunt i
My Commission Expites

Granits Pathways

Amandment ¥2
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Page2of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Useo Disorder - Regional Access Point Sorvices

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

21/

(. i
Date [ [ Name: fi Lfc\(.ﬂ}
. . Title: M
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor arld Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

[sate Name:
Title:

Granite Pzhways

Amendment #2
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Pagedof 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

1.

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Depariment’s Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by ths
Slate of NH - ¢reated, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regutation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (PH), Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry {PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1.Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information iifecycle, where applicable, {from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2.Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that coltect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information where applicable.

2.3.Encrypt, at a minimum, any Depariment confidential data stored on partable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when fransmitted over public networks like the Internet using cumrent industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption. ;

2.4.Ensure proper security monitoring capabifities are in place 1o detect potential security events that ¢can
impact State of NH systems andfor Depariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department’s contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systemns that connect o the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1.*Breach” shall have the samsg meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Tithe 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. "Computar Security incident® sha$ have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, Naticnal Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce,
Breach netifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChiefinformationQfficer@dhhs.nh.qov
2.6.1.2. DHHS InformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

2.7.1f the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or its sub-contraclor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontraciors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use, efectronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unreccverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepled standards for secure

Exhibit i — DHHS Information Security Requirements Gonlractor Initials ( l ' ~

CU/DHHS/032917 Page 10f2 pae____ {38



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

deletion, or olherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification 1o the
Depariment upon request. The written cerfification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standands for
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.4. If the vendor will be sub<contracting any core functions of the engagement supporiing the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specilic security expectations, and monitering compliance to security requirements thatata
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor wilt work with the Depariment to sign and comply with all applicable Stale of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorizalion policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access lo any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-coniractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant lo 45 CFR 160,103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at ils request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an altemate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendecr, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Deparirment and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Depariment data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express wrilten consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

Exhibit K — DHHS Informtation Security Requiremants Cantractor ntisis (I

CUDHHS/D32517 Page 2of2 Cate lg!éh}:
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 6032714332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

) www.dhhs.nh.gov

JelTrey A Meyers
Commiwsioner

Katja & Fox
Director

QAN

May 23, 2017 % L{ \
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu )
and the Honorable Council
State House :
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heafth,
Bureau of Drug and Alcoho! Services, to amend sole source contracts by exercising a renewal option
with the vendors listed below, for the continuation of Regional Access Point Services to assist
individuals with substance use disorders to obtain the help they need, by increasing the price limitation
by $588,700 from $1,609,445 1o an amount not to exceed $2,198,145, and exending the completion
date from June 30, 2017 to December 31, 2017, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council

appraval. The sources of funds for this action are as foliows: 64% Federal, 16% General, and 20%
Other Funds.

The original contracls were approved by Govemnor and Executive Council as follows:
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. on March 8, 2016 (Item #22), National Council on Alcoholism

and Drug Dependence/Greater Manchester on April 6, 2016 (/tem #8), and Granite Pathways on July
13, 2016 (Item #6C).

Summary of Contract Vendors by Amounts:

Current increase Revised

Budgeted | (Decrease) Budget

Vendor Amount Amount Amount
Granite Pathways $1,200,000 $406,700 | $1,606,700

National Council on Alcoholism and Drug

Dependence/Greater Manchester $197,945 $132,000 $329,945
Southwestem Community Services, Inc. $211,500 $50,000 $261,500
Grand Total $1,609,445 $588,700 ) $2.,198,145

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 upon the availabilty and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability 1o adjust amounts within
the budgets and encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without
Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial detalis.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION
These three (3) Amendments are sole source to allow the Contractors to continue to provide
Regional Access Point Services to any individual living, working, or otherwise seeking services in New
Hampshire. The Department issued a new Request for Proposals on May 17, 2017. These
Amendments extend the completion date of the contract for six (6) months that will allow the
Depariment to have contracts resulting from this new Request for Proposals in place prior to the
expiration of this extension.

The original contracts were sole source because it was necessary to implement these services
as quickly as possible. These Vendors were chosen based on their capacity to implement Regional
Access Point Services statewide in a highly efficient manner. As of April 2017, 1,662 of New
Hampshire residents have accessed these sefvices and been assisted in identifying and entering
clinically appropriate substance use disorders treatment and recovery support services. Feedback from
clients indicates that the Regional Access Point Services made the process significantly easier for
them and that the support provided to them during the process was invaluabte,

Regional Access Point Services include screening clients for substance use disorders,
completing evaluations to recommend a level of treatment or recovery support services, refeming
clients to providers for treatment services or recovery support services, and enrolling clients with third
party payers, case management, and crisis support.

This Amendment includes language that provides, notwithstanding any other provision of the
Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not
be liable for any payments for services provided-after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation
for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY
2018-20192 biennium.,

The attached Contracts include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up
to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, safisfactory performance of
contracted services and Govemor and Executive Council approval. The Department is exercising six
{6) months of the two year renewal.

Should the Govemnor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access Foint
Services woukl not be available to individuals statewide. The inability to access these services will
negatively impact an individual's ability to achieve and/or maintain recovery from substance use
disorders.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 16% General Funds; 64% Federal Funds (CFDA #953.959 FAIN Ti010035
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Ahuse, Substance Abuse
Block Grant SABG) and 20% Other Funds.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counci
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
. —
VAN~ e

Kalja S. Fox
Director

Approved by: Mé ’(

Joffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tho Deparimant of Haallh and Human Services” Mission s [o join communities and familes
in providing opportunities for cilitens fo achmva heaith and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, N 03301
Fax: 600-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

May 30, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner .
Depantment of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Meyers:
This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Informéticn Technology (DolT)

has approved your agency’s request 10 amend three (3) sole spurce contracts with the vendors listed in the
1able below and referenced as DolT No. 2017-095:

Vendor Increased Amount Total

Granite Pathnwvays $406,700 | 51,606,700

National Council on Alcoholism and Drug $132,000 15 329,945

Dependence /Great Manchester

Southwestem Community Services, Inc $ 50,600 |5 261,500
[ Total == $588,700 | $2,198.145

With these amendments, the vendors will continue to provide substance use disorder in_f'ormaticn,
screening, evaluation and referral services to any individual living, working or otherwise seeking
services in New Hampshire.

The price limitation for these amendments will increase by $388,700 from $1,609,445 to an
amotnt not to exceed 52,198,145 and the completion date will extend from June 30, 2017 to
December 31, 2017, effective upon Governor and Councii approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely, |

Denis Goulet

DG/ik
DolIT No. 201 7-095

cc: Bruce Smith, 1T Managgr

-

“Innovative Technologies Today for New Hompshire's Tomorrow™



Attachment A
Financial Details

05-35-45-451510-2988 HEALTH AND SQCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT QF, HHS: AV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC,
BUREAU OF DAUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNQR COMMISSION FUNDS 100% Other Funds
National Councdl on Alcoholism & Drug Dependence/Gr Manchester V#177265-R001 PO £1050218
State Fiscal Ruvised Modiflod
Increaso! Docr
Year Class/Account Tite Budget Amount ¢ one Budget
2016 102-500734 Ccmm‘c;s\.n:ﬁ-’r Frod £32,500 30 $32,500
2017 102-500734 Cm!racsiz :or Prog $130.600 $o $130,000
Subotal $762,500 50 $162,500
Seuthwestem Community Services, Inc V#1775t 1-P001 PO #1(AS4T3
cLab
State Fiscal Incroase! Decrease Ravised Modified
Year ClassiAccount Titte Budgat Amount Budgst
2016 102-500734 °°""°°;:°’ Prog $52.100 50 $52,100
2017 102500734 Contragss for Prog $125,000 30 $125.000
Sub-tota] $177.100 $0 3177.100
Total Gov. $339,800 50 §)9,600
Comm

05-33-43-431510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV CIF-COHH BASED CARE SVC,
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SvCS, CLINICAL SERVICES 80% Fedoral Funds, 20% Gonera) Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93,959

Granfte Patiways, oo Fedcap Vi 228300-8004 PO #1053366
Sate Fiscal Increasel Decrease Ravised Modified
Yaar Class/Account Tive Budget Amount Budgst
2016 102-500734 m’“‘;g_"' Prog 30 30 30
2017 102-500734 Contracts for Preg $1,200,000 0 $1,200,000
Sub-total $1.200,000 0 $1.200,000
Nationat Councdl on Alccholism & Orug DependenceiGr Manchesier V#177265-R0M PQ $1050218
Stata Flacal : Revized ModHied
Increase! Dectoase
Year Class/Ac count Title Budgel Amount Budget
2016 102-500734 C“‘”"’;ﬁ;"‘ Prog 37,085 “$0 37,09
2017 102500734 Conlrac’s for Prog $28.350 50 328,350
Subtotal $35.445) 50 $35,445
Attachment A
Financial Detait
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Attachment A
Financial Details

Southwestem Community Services, inc V#177511.P001 PO 21049473
State Fiscal Ravised Modifiad
Increasel Decroase
Year Clasy/Account Title Budget Amount " Budget
2016 102-500734 C‘“"a‘s‘t:" Prog $10,100 50 $10,100
2017 102-500734 @”"a%zc"" Prog 324,300 30 $24.300
Sub-total $34.400 30 $34.400
To!a;::lsnlcal $1.265,8438 30 $1.369.845

05-95-32-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SvC,
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERMOR COMMISSION FUNDS 100% Othaf Funds

Nationial Coungl on Alcoholism & Orug Dependence/Gr Manchester VB177265-R001 PO #1050218
Stats Flacal Increase/ Decrease Revised Modified
Year Class/account Title Budget Amount Budget
2018 102-500734 Cm““; c'°’ Prog .30 $66,980 $56,980
Sub-total 50 $66.980 $66.960
Southwestem Commiunity Services, Inc Vi#177511-P001 PO #1045473
State Fical Incrazsel Cecrozse Revised Modifiod
Yoar "ClassiAccount Ttk Budget Amount Budge
2018 102-500734 c"”""‘s‘t;"' Prog $0 $24.770 $24,770
Sub-lotal [ $24.770 $24.770
Total Gov. g0 $91.750 $91,750
Comm

03-95-92-970510-3334 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH lAND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC,
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVYCS, CLINICAL SERVICES 80% Federal Funds, 20% Genoral Funds FAIN TIO10035 CFDA 93.954

Granite Pathways. e/o Fedcap Ve 228900-B001 PO #1053366
State Fiscal (ncroasol Decraase Ravised Modified
Year Clasy/Account Tivie Budgat Amount Budget
2018 102-500734 Contracis or Prag s $406.700 $406.700
Sub-total 30 $406, 700 #406.700
Nationgt Council on Alcohotism & Drug Dependence/Gr Manchester V#177265-R001 PO #1050218
Stato Fiscal Increase/ Docraasa | Tovised Modifiod
Your Class/account Tite Budgel Amount Budget
218 102.500734 Conlrac’s for Prog 50 $65.020 565,020
Sub-tolal $0 365,020 $85,020
Southwestem Community Servicas. Inc V#177511-P001 PO #1049473
5“:.:"3“' ClasyAccount Title Budgoet Amount Increass! Dacraaso ng‘:é:’fm‘d
2018 102500734 Cantradis for Frog %0 25230 $25230
Sub-total 30 $25.230 $25,230
et | e | e
Total Contract 31,609,445 §588,700 $2,198,148
Afachment A
Financial Detad
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Attachment A
Financial Details

Grand Tolal by Vendor
PO Vendors Vendor # Cuvrent Price Limitation | IncreasefDecrease | New Price Limitatien
PO #1053366 [Granite Paltavays 228900-8041 $1.200.000 $406.700 $1.606.700
Nationat Council on Alcohalism &
PO #1050218 Drug Dependence 177265-R00Y $197.945 $132,000 §329,945
PO 21049473 |Southwestem Community Svs 177511-PC01 5211.500 $50.000 - $261.500
Total $1,609,445 $588.700 $2.198.145
Attachment A
Financizl Betail
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New Hampshire Departmant of Health and Human Services
Subatanca Usa Disorder - Regional Accass Point Services

State of New Hampshirs
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the
Substance Use Disorder - Regiona! Accoss Point Sarvices Contract

This 1“ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder - Regiona! Access Point Services contract (hersinafier refemad
to &3 "Amendmsmt 17) dsted this 17" doy of May, 2017, is by and between tha Stats of New Hampshire,
Departmeant of Health and Human Services (hereinsfier referred to as the "Stata" or "Department’) and Granite
Pathways (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor’), s non-profit comporation with a plece of business at co
Fedeap Rehabiltation Sarvices, Inc., 10 Ferry Street, Concord, NH, 03301,

WHEREAS, pursuani to en agreemant (the “Contracl”) epproved by (he Governor and Executive Councii on July
13, 2016 (tem #EC), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified In the Contract a5 emended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Conltractor have agreed to make changes (o the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contracl: end

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibi C-1 Poragraph 3, the Depariment
reserves the right to renew the Contract for up lo hwo (2) edditional years, subject lo the continued availabisty of
tunds, satisTaciory performance of sarvices end Govemnor and Executive Councll spprovel; end

WHEREAS, the parties agres to oxtend the completion dats of the agresment by six (6) months, and increasa the
prica imitation.

NOW THEREFORE, in cansideration of the foragoing and the mutug! covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties herelo agree as foliows:

1. General Provisions (Form P-37). Block 1.8, to add Account Numbers:
05-095-092-920510-33820000-102-500734
05-095-002-820510-33840000-102-500734

2. Genrers! Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7, to reed Decembar 31, 2017.

3. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, to increase Price Limilotion to read: $1,608,700.

4. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, 1o read Jonethan V. Gatio, Esq.. Interim Director of Contracts and

Procurement.
5. General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.10 to read 803-271-9246.
6. Add to Exhibit A, Section 1.10 10 read: '
1.10  Notwithstanding eny olher provision of tha Contract lo the contrary, no services shall

continua after June 30, 2017, end tha Dapartmant shall nol be liable for any peyments fos
services providad after June 30, 2017, untess and until an appropriation for thesa sarvices

has been received from the stals legisistire and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-
2019 biennium.

Granko Pethaays
Ampndment 81
53-2017-80AS-01-REGHD-01 Page 104



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disordar - Regional Accoss Point Sarvicas

7. Add Exhiblt A, Scope of Services Section 8 Transition Activities to read:

8. When lhe state Issues a Request for Proposals combining crisis and regional sccess point
services, in order to ensure continuity of care for ciients, the Contractor s requirad to waork
with (he Department lo develop transition plans for the services and clients. The Contractor
shall, but nol limited to:

8.1.1. Meei with the Department and the Depariment’s new Contractor (resulting from the
Request for Proposals) within len (10) days of the conltract effective date of the new
contract to develop lransition and implementalion plans; and

8.1.2. Engage in all activities and meet all completion dates of the Depatmen! approved
transttion and implementation plan.

8. Deiete in its entirety Exhibit B Method and Conditions Precedent 1o Payment and replace with Exhibit B-1
Amendment #1 Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.
8. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget

10. Delete inils entivety Exhibit C-1 Revision to General Provisions and replace with Exhibit C-1 Amendment #1
Revisions to General Provisions

Remainder of the paga left intentionally blank,

Grante Pathweays
Amendment #1
5§5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Paga20ol4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Uss Disorder - Reglonal Accoss Point Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Execulive Council approval,
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have sel their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Depariment of Health and Human Services

sl nee % =
= C

Granilg#

slislt+

Date Name: C\vish, o Mo Mahon
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

; =
State of i Yoo  Countyof M 222 %‘ﬂ-l- on> Z’ 8// d %' , before the undersigned officer,
porscnally 8 the person identified directfy above, or salisfacionily proven to be the parson whose name is
ed t she executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signsture of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

?HOA'DA K. lowé

Neme and Tl of Natary or Justice of the Peace

MyCommi‘sion Expires: \-J"*‘é‘-{ [ﬁ, aé)l (

RHONDA K. LOWE
Notary Public - Stats ol Now York
No. 02-L08224427
Qulllﬁ-d_l.n New York Coun
Commiaion Expires July 5.3:??
{

Granite Patiesys
Amendmen N
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01 Pege Jof 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Subatance lise Disorder - Regional Access Point Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this oifice, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

L5717 A o 4%&%@/

Date Name: Toam &-s0t.(f
-r'“e ,'-;r ffﬁ-\f A#y!-,‘y’ £/'1frJ

| hereby certify thal the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Exacutive Council of the State
of New Hampshire al the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY QOF STATE

Date . Name:
Title:
Granite Pedvrays
Amanamant #1
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New Hampshirs Department of Health and Human Sacvices
Substence Use Disordar Reglona! Access Point Services
55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Mathod and Conditions Precedent to Pavment

1. The State shall pay the Contraclor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contraclor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This cortract is funded with general and federal funds. Depariment access to supporing
funding for this project is dependent upan the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) (htips:/fwww.cfda.qov) #93.959 U.S. Depariment of Health
and Human Services; Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration;
Block Grants for Prevention and Trealment of Substance Abuse; Substanca Abuse
Block Grant {SABG).

3 The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and indirect
costs to provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit B-1,
Budget and Exhibit B-2, Budget.

4, Payment for services provided in accordanca with Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shal] be
mada as follows:

4.1. Payments shall be made on cost reimbursement basis only, for allowable costs,
expenses and fees in accordance with Exhibts B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-2,
Budget.

4.2. Allowable cosis and expenses shall include those expenses detailed in Exhiit B-1,
Budget and Exhibit B-2, Budget

4.3. The Contractor shail submit monthly invoices using invoice forms provided by the
Department.

4.4. The Conlractor shall submit supporting documentation and required reports in
Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Data and Reporting Requirements, that
support evidence of actual expenditures. in sccordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget
and Exhbit B-2, Budget for the previous month by the tenth (10th) working day of
the currant month.

4.5. The Contractor shall submit invoices for services outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services in accordance with budget line items in Exhibit B-1, Budget and Exhibit B-
2, Budget preferably by e-mail on Depariment approved involces to:

Finance Manager

Division of Behavioral Health

Depariment of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301

Granite Pathways Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor lnitials
§35-2017-BDAS-D1-REGIO-01 £ fﬁ‘l 2
Page 10f 2 Date [ !



Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substence Use Disorder Reglonal Access Painl Services
$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Exhibit B Amendmeant #1

5. The State shall rmake payment to the Contractor within thirly {30} days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor setvices provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. A final payment request shall be subrnitted no later than forty {40} days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the conftrary herein, the Contractor agreas that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or In par, in the avent of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if

- the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and Exhibil B-2, and within
the prica fimitation, can be made by writlen agreement of both parties and may be made
without ottalning approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

9. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue fo operate at
fuil capaclty at no charga to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
perind.

Granita Pathways Exhibil B Amendment &1 Contracior Initals 0’”“&
55-2017-8DAS-01-REGIO-01 il
Paga 2 of 2 Date /14113



EXHIBIT B-2 Budgat
New Hampshire Department of Hesith and Human Services

Bidder Nama: Granhs Pathways

Budget Requast for: __Subatence Use Disorder - Regional Access Polmt Sarvicas
Buaget Farlod: Juty 1, 207 through December 31, 2017

053.10 20 648.37 48 65947
$ 6061593 ¢ 953,91 % 74,600.84
;i ¢ - ;;
3 18,000.00 2,160.00 20,160.00
3 6,000.00 720.00 6,720.00
p - -
< $ - -
10 Mmm, 3 19,800.00 2,368.00 32,288.00
11, Staff Edussiion and Traaung — - M
12, roaments 3 30,561.28 3,667.35 34 228 63
13, - .
rotessional Foes - -
. g .
3 - 5.95
Al [ 83,130, [ 4157584 cgﬁLwﬁq
incirect As A Parcent of Direct 12.0%

Granite Paettrerays 0 ]V\.

Exhibk 8-2 Corroctor iiaty:
$5-2017-80AS-01-REGH0-07 Dets:_S] &7 1>



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1 Amsndment #1

\ N PROVI
1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:
4.  CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreament to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including withoyt limitation, the continuence of payments, in whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingenl upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including eny subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds atected by
any state or federal legisiative or executive action that reduces, gliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availabllity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Senvices provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shait the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, lermination or modification of eppropriated or aveilable funds, the
State shall have the right to withhotd payment urtil such funds become ovallable, if ever, The
State shall have the right 10 reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Conlractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shali no! be required to transfer funds from any other source or eccound into the
Account{s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any ofher
eccount, in the event funds ere reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the Ganeral Provisions of this contract, Temination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 60 days afler giving the Contracior written notice that the Slate is exercising fts
option to teminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, work with the Department as direcled
by it to develop a Transiion Plan for services and clients being served under the
Agreement, including but not kmited o, identifying the present and future needs of cients
recaiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
The Contractor shall submil an initial Transition Pian for Department approval within a
timeframe defined by the Depariment. Any changes requested by the Depsartment to the
Transition Ptan shali be completad within three (3) days of the change request.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly peovide detailed
information to support the Transiion Plan including, but not limited to, any inlomation or
data requested by the Stale relaled to the lermination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing cammunication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State s
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not Emited to clients receiving
sarvices under the Agreement are transiticned lo having servicas deliverad by another entty
incuding contracied providers or the State, the Coniractor shall provide 2 procass for
uninteitupled delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individusis
about the transiton. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted Lo the State as described above.

3 The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) edditional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of servicea and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Pagetoft
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Revisions to General Provsions OL —
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“ STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Jeffrey A Meyers Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Comumnissioner
105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Katja S. Fox 603-271-6738 1-800-804-0909
Director of the Fex: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Division of www.dhhs.nh.gov

Bebavioral Health y]/ 131 ()
June 28, 2016 ‘H:Q Q

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03101

REQUESTED ACTION

Autherize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a SOLE SOURCE Agreement
with Granite Pathways, c/o Fedcap, 10 Ferry Street, Concord NH 03301 for the provision of Regional Access
Point Services 1o assist individuals with substance use disorders obtain the help they need in an amount not to
exceed $1,200,000 effective upon Govermor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2017. 75%
Federal, 25% General

Funds 1o support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2017, upon the
availability and confinued appropriation of funds in the operating budget, with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without further
approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-49-491510-2990 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES (25% Geueral 75% Federal)

Fiscal Year _Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 102.500734 Contracts for Program Services 49156501 $1,200,000
Contract Total: $1,200,000
EXP 1

This is a SOLE SOURCE Ag—recmen{ because the Department has determined it is necessary (o
implement these services as quickly as possible. This vendor was chosen based on their capacity lo implement
regional access point services statewide in a highly efficient manner.

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide substance use disorder (SUD) information, screening,
evaluation, and referral services to any individua! living, working. or otherwise seeking services in the North
Country, Upper Valley, Central NH, Carroll County, Greater Sullivan County, Winnipesaukee, Capital, Strafford
Counry, Greater Nashua, Greater Derry, and Seacoast Public Health Regions. Regional Access Point provide a
wide array of services 10 assist individuals with accessing substance use disorder treatment and recovery support



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

services and achieving and sustaining recovery from substance use disorders, including but not limited to:
screening, referral, enrollment with thied party payers, case management, and crisis support.

This Agreement contains language which allows the Department to extend for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and {overnor and
Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Regional Access Point Services
would not be available to individuals in the areas listed. The inability to access these services will negatively
impact an individual’s ability to achieve and/or maintain recovery from substance use disorders.

If general funds become no longer available, no federal funds will be requested to support this
Agreement,

Areas Served: North Country, Upper Valley, Central NH, Canoll County, Greater Sullivan County,
Winnipesaukee, Capital, Steafford County, Greater Nashua, Greater Derry, and Scacoast Public Health Regions

Source of Funds: 25% General Funds; 75% Federal Funds (CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI010035-15 U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Block
Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse, Substance Abuse Block Grant SABG)

Respectfully submitted,

Ve~ B <

Katja §. Fox
Director of the Division of
Behavioral Health

Approved by:
frey A.Meyer.
Commissioner

The Depariment of Health and Human Services™ Mission is o join communities and fomilies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (versico 5/2/15)
Subject: Substance Use Disorder - Statewide Regional Access Point jces {88-2017-BDAS-0] -

Nofice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission te Govemor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hercby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROYISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
L1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Departmem of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasani Streat
Division of Behavioral Healib/Bureau of Dyug and Alcohol Concord, NH 03301-3857
Services
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Granite.Pahways. Granite Pathways
¢/o Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc.
10 Ferry Strect, Concord, NH 03301
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number ’
§03-225-9540 ext. 103 05-95-049-491510-29900000- | 673072017 $1,200,000.
102-500734
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric B. Borrin, Director 603-271-9558
e Vi
L1 or Si 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
S Chrivhat HLI-me’ frendenta CEO

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of Al ",)'ﬁ' , County of Muu \dq../t.

On Jene ¥, 20th | before the undersigned officer, personally appearcd the person identified in block .12, or satisfactarily
proven o be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that she exccuted this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

s /(b/.wb—-

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

ﬂrmd Réisent, watiany Aubohic.
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

VLR owlPlie | i S.TFox Dimpetr

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Depantment of Administratiod, Division of Personnel ftbpplicable)

AMY REISNER
Notary Pyblic - State of Nuw York
NO. D1RE621532681

My Commission Expites

By: Director, On:

1.I7 Approval by the Anomey General {(Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
A By: .

1.18 Approval by the Governor i if applicable) | /
By:

Pape 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the ageney identificd in block [.1(*State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{~Sevvices™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
1.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecment to the
contrary, and subjext to the approval of the Governor ard
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the partics
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Execulive Courncil approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Datc, all Services performed by the Contracior prior
to the Effective Date shadl be perfonmed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become cffective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurted or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecment to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continved appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments heseunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In theevent of a reduction or termination of
sppropriated funds, the Stzte shall have the right 1o withhold
payment until such funds become available, if cver, and shall
have the right 1o terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniractor notice of such tesmination. The State
shall met be required 10 transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the evem funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

8. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

52 The payment by the Stalc of the contract price shall be the
only and the camplete reimbursement to the Contractor for ali
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services, The State
dg.ll have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offsct from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:?-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding uncxpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.! In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which imposc any cbligation or duty upon the Contractor,

. including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

laws. This may include the requiremnent to utilize auxiliary
aids and services Lo ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
comMunicale with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with atl applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreemerx, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
cmployment because of race, color, religion, creed. age, sex,
handicap, sexual oricniation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall ¢comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (4)
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rulcs, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the Uniled States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor Further agrees lo
permit the Stale or United States access to any of the
Conlractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

2.1 The Contractor shall at its own cxpense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that al} personnel enpgaged in the Services shull be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tesm of
this Agrecment, and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ghall not permit any subconiractor or ofher person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort 1o
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved inthe
procurefrent, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initiafy f f ék
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Cortracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the cvent
of any dispute copcerming the imerpretation of this Agreement,
the Convracting Officer”s decision shall be final for the State.

8_EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any ont or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

&.12 failure to submit any repon required hereunder; and’or
£.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

B.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, Lhirty {30)
days from (he date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
{2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
822 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid 1o the Contractor;

B.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Comractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or ‘

B.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY!
PRESERVATION,

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemeny, inciuding, but not limited to, all Sudies, repons,
files, formulse, surveys, maps, chants, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictotial reproductions, drawings, analyscs,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
Printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

S.2 All data and any property which has becn received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State. and
shall be returned (o the State upon demand or upen
terminalion of this Agreement for 2ny reason.

9.3 Confidentinlity of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law, Disclosure of data
fequires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an carly termination of
this Agreement for any reason eiher than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not later than fifieen {15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Repon™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matler, coment, and number of copics of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
Tespects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent ner
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other cmofumeets provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of Lhe Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior wrilten
notice 2nd consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hald harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employecs, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of {or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute 2 waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
rescrved lo the State. This covenant in paragraph |3 shall
survive the lermination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at iis sole expense, obtain and
mainain in force, and shall require any subcentractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in foree, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and 52,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.]1.2 special causc of loss coverage form covering all
propeny subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire,

Page 3 of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish 10 the Contracting Officer
¥entified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificatels)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Coniractor stall afso fumish to the Contracting Officer
Wentified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, centificate(s) of
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreernent no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of ezch of the insurance policies. The cettificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporaied herein by reference. Each centificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in bleck 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thiny (30) days ptior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

i5. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Coniracior is in compliance with
oc exemnpt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{"Workers' Compensation ™).

15.2 Tothe extent the Contractor is subject lo The
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignes 1o secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensalion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
underiake pursuant to this Agreement. Contracler shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contracior, or
any subcentractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Staie of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensalion laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement..

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the S1ate 1o
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
{dlure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State 10 enforce each and all of the
provisions hercof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Condractor.

17.NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
skall be decmed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in 2 Uniled
Staies Post Office addressed 10 the partics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant lo
Siae law, rule or policy,

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agrecmen shall be consirued in accordance with the
taws of the State of New Hampshire, and is birding upon and
inures to the beneft of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is lhe wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shali be applied agains or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

2i. HEADINGS. The headings threughout the Agrezment
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

11, SPECLAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions se1
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference,

23, SEVERABILITY. Inthe cvenl any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of compeient jurisdiction to
be contraky to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in ful! force and
cffect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be excculed in 2 number of counterparts, cach of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings refating hereto.
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Exhibit A

Scopp of Sarvices

1. Praovislons Applicable to All Sgrvices

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

14.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7
1.8

18.

The Contractor agrees that, fo the extent future legisiative action by the New
Hampshire General Coun or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith,

The Contractor shall pursue any and ali appropriate public sources of funds that are

-applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or

rehabiitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or deniaks of funding from such public sources of funds.

For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean calendar days,
excapt where business days are specifically noted. For these purposes, a business
day shall generally mean any day from Monday to Friday, except Holiday observed
by the government of the State of New Hampshire.

For the purposes of this contract, all data entry, documentation and recording shall
be completed using the Web Infermation Technology System (WITS).

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain one or more service sites, which shall
comply with all fire, health, and salety codes which shall include but not be fimited to
being handicap and wheglchair accessible.

The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the Department prior to entering
into any agreement regarding service site relocation.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event policy.

The Contractor shall participate in the Regional Public Health Network(s) associated
with the towns served by the Reglonal Access Foints (RAP) under this contract,
which shall include, but not be limited to:

1.8.1.  Working with the Continuum of Care Facilitator(s) in the development of a
resiliency and recovery orented system of care (RROSC) In the region(s}.

1.8.2.  Participating in the Regicnal Continuum of Care Workgroup(s).

The Contractor shatl engage in quality assurance and management aclivities, which
shall include but not be limited teo:

1.9.1.  Site reviews by the Depariment.

1.9.2.  Other quality assurance and management activities, as determined by the
Department.

2. Sorvicos to be Provided

2.1.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A = Scope of Services
§5-2017-B0AS-01-REGIO-01

The Contraclor shall develop Regional Access Points (RAP) for the provision of
substance use disorder (SUD) Information, screening, and referral sarvices to any
individual living, warking, or otherwise seeking services in the following public health
network areas:
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213

218.

2.1.10.

2.1.11,

Granila Pat

$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

North Counlry, which includes: Atkinson and Gilmanton Academy Grant,
Bath, Beans Grant, Beans Purchase, Benton, Berlin, Bethlehem,
Cambridge, Carroll, Chandlers Purchase, Clarksville, Colebrook, Columbia,
Crawfords Purchase, Cutts Grant, Dalton, Dixs Grant, Dixville, Dummer,
Easton, Emol, Ervings Location, Franconia, Gorham, Greens Grant,
Hadleys Purchase, Haverhill, Jefferson, Kilkennay, Lancaster, Landaff,
Lisbon, Littleton, Low and Burbank's Grant, Lyman, Martins Location, Milan,
Mifisfield, Monroe, Northumberdand, Odeli, Pinkham’s Grant, Pittsburp,
Randelph, Sargents Purchase, Second College Grant, Shelbume, Stark,
Stewartstown, Stratford, Success, Sugar Hill, Thompsons & Meserves
Purchase, Wentworths Locatlon, and Whitefield.

Upper Valley, which includes: Canaan, Dorchester, Enfield, Grafton,
Grantham, Hanover, Lebanon, Lyme, Orange, Oiford, Piermont, and
Plainfield.

Central NH, which includes: Alexandria, Ashland, Bridgewater, Bristal,
Campton, Elisworth, Groton, Hebron, Holkderness, Lincoln, Livermore,
Plymouth, Rumney, Thomton, Warren, Waterville Valley, Wentworth, and
Woodstock. ‘

Carroll County, which includes: Albany, Barflett, Brookfield, Chatham,
Conway, Eaton, Effingham, Freedom, Hale's Locatien, Harts Location,
Jackson, Madison, Moultonborough, Ossipee, Sandwich, Tamworth,
Tultonboro, Wakefield, and Wolfeboro.

Greater Sullivan, which includes: Acworth, Charlestown, Claremont,
Comish, Croydon, Goshen, Langdon, Lempster, Newbury, New Londan,
Newport, Springfield, Sunapee, Sutton, Unity, and Wilmot.

Winnipesaukee, which includes: Alion, Barmstead, Belmant, Center Harbor,
Danbury. Franklin, Gilford, Gitmanton, Hill, Laconia, Meredith, New
Hampton, Northfield, Sanbomton, and Tilton.

Capital, which includes: Allenstown, Andover, Boscawen, Bow, Bradford,
Canterbury, Chichester, Concord, Deering, Dunbarton, Epsom, Henniker,
Hillsborough, Hopkinton, Loudon, Northwood, Pembroke, Pittsfield,
Salisbury, Wamer, Washington, Weare, Webster, and Windsor.

Straflord County, which includes: Barrington, Dover, Durham, Famington,
Lee, Madbury, Middleton. Mitton, New Durham, Rochester, Rollinsford,
Somersworth, and Strafford.

Greater Nashua, which includes: Amherst, Brookline, Hollis, Hudson,

Litchfield, Lyndeborough, Mason, Mesrimack, Miford, Mont Vemon,
Nashua, Petham, and Wilton.

Greater Derry, which includes: Atkinson, Chester, Danville, Derry,
Hampstead, Londonderry, Plaistow, Salem, Sandown, and Windham.

Seacoast, which includes: Brentwood, East Kingston, Epping, Exeter,
Fremont, Greentand, Hampton, Hamptan Falls, Kensington, Kingston, New
Caslle, Newfields, Newinglon, Newmarket, Newton, North Hampton,

Exhibit A — Scope of Services Conlractor initials;
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Nottingham, Portsmouth, Raymond, Rye, Seabrook, South Hampton, and
Stratham.

22. The Contractor shall provide Regional Access Point (RAP) services 10 assist up to
7,000 individuals annually who have substance use disorders, who are:

2.2.1. Individuals with substanca use disorders who are age 12 or older or under
age 12 with the consent of a parent or other legal guardian; and

2.2.2. Residents of or homeless in New Hampshire.

2.3. The Conractor shall conduct culreach aclivities fo promote and market Regional
Access Point (RAP) services, stalewide, to individuals, health and social service
agencies, businesses and community members. The Contraclor shaill ensure
outreach activities include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Developing printed materials using customized versions of ‘Anyone
Anytime NH,” for broad distribution, which may include, but is not limied to:

©2.3.1.1. Brochures

2.3.1.2. Flyers

2.3.1.3. Display posters
2.3.14. Pens

2.3.1.5. Magnets

2.3.1.6. Other marketing lools

23.2. Publicizing telephone numbers, web addresses and other contact
information associated with the information channels described in Section
24

2.3.3. Establishing and actively moniloring social media sites, which may include
Facebook and Twitter.

2.34. Ensuring outreach aclivities target core community sactors that include, but
are not fimited to:

23.4.1. Health and medical

2.34.2 Safety and law enforcement
2.3.4.3. Education

2.3.4.4, Business

23.4.5. Government

2.34.6. Community and family supports

2.4. The Contractor shall develop multiple information channels by which an individual
may request information that shali include, but not be limiled to {elephone, e-mail,
and in-person. The Contractor shah:

24.1. Respond 1o all requests for information within 24 hours of receiving
requests for mformation.

Granite Pattways Exhibit A — Scope of Services Contracior wrm@:
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2.5.

2.6.

2.4.2,

243,

Ensure, at minimum, one information channe! is available to the public 24
hours per day, 7 days per week, which may include refetral to the statewide
crisis hotline during off hours.

Ensure information available through all information channels includes, but
is not fimited to types and locations of services availabie:

2,431, For Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment
2.4.3.2. For SUD recovery support

2433, To support friends, family members and other concemed
individuals .

The Contractor shall respord to requests for substance use disorders treatment
services by scheduling a screening appointment for the cient. The Contractor shal:

25.1.

252

253

254.

Ensure the screening appointment is scheduled within 48 hours of the
client's initial request for services.

Provide an appoiniment date that is within ten (10) days of scheduling the
appointment.
Ensure the screening appointment:

253.1. Can be completed by the client in person; by telephone, or face-
to-face.

2532, Is completed by a Cenrtified Recovery Support Warker (CRSW),
who shall, at a minimum:

25.3.2.1. Gather client demographic, contact, and emergency
contact information;

2.5.3.2.2. ldentify payer sources available to the client; and

2.5.3.2.3. Use an evidence-based screening tool, as approved by
the Depariment, to determine the likekhood of a
substance use disorder, as defined by the DSM 5.

Dacument client profile, intake and admission information in WITS within 3
days of complating the screening. ‘

The Contractor shall schedule, through Memorandums of Understanding with SUD
treatment providers In the service area, evaluations of clients who screen positive for
substance use disorder within 48 hours of the completed screening in Section 2.5, as
appropriate. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.6.1.
26.2.

26.3.

Granite Pathways
55-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

Evaluations are completed within 10 days of scheduling the evaluation,

Evaluations are completed by a Licensed Alcohal and Drug Counselor
(LADC), Master Licensed Alcohcl and Drug Counselor (MLADC), or
licensed mental health professional who has demaonstrated competency in
the treatment of substance use disorders.

Clients are evaluated in all American Society of Addiction Madicine (ASAM,
October 2013) dimensions.

Exhibit A = Scope of Services Contractor Inﬂial—a@
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264. Evaluations are completed using one or more evidence-based evaluation
tools.

26.5. Evaluations meet 'Addiction Counseling Competencies, TAP 21' standards
http.//stare.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addictio unseling-

Competencies/SMA15-4171):

26.6. Evaluations include a DSM-5 Substance Use Disorder diagnosis when
appropriate.

26.7. Recommendations are provided to dlients diagnosed as having a substance
use disarder, as appropriale, which must include, bul are not be limited to,
recommendations for:

26.7.1. Aninitial ASAM lave! of care.
26.1.2. Recovery support and/or other needed services.

26.7.3. Interim services i the indicated ASAM lovel of care is not
Immediately available to the client.

26.8. Diagnosis information is entered intoa WITS within three {3) business days
of completing each evakluation.

2.7. The Confractor shall provide referral services to clients in order to meel the
recommendations that result from the evaluation in Section 2.6.7. The Contractor
shall:

2.1.1.  Ensure referral services are provided by a CRSW.
2.1.2.  Ensure referral services include, but are not limited to:

2.7.2.1. {dentifying provider agencies that can meet the evalualion
recommendations in Section 2.6.7.

2.71.2.2. Contacting the provider agency on behalf of the client, as
appropriate. -

2.1.2.3. Assisling the client with making contact with the provider agency,
as appropriate.

2.7.2.4. Supporting the client in meefing the admisslon/entrancefintake
requirements of the provikder agency.

2.7.3. Develop and maintain a database af provider agencies by region o meet
the needs of clients, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.7.3.1. Substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services
2.1.3.2. Physical health services
2.7.3.3. Behavioral heakh services
2.7.3.4. Employment and sducation services
2.7.3.5. Houslng services

2.7.4.  Ensure Memorandums of Understanding are executed with SUD treatment
and peer recovery support servicas providers in the communities within

Granilo Patwnys Exhibit A ~ Scope of Sarvices Contractor Initlaif:” ( 2—--—
55201 7.BDAS-01-REGID-01 i
Page 5af 10 Date:_& l L‘f[g;



New Hampshirs Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder - Statewide Reglonal Access Point Services
$S-2017-BDAS01-REGIO-01

Exhibit A

each region served to ensure clients can access interim and other services
within 7 days of completed evaluations described in Section 2.6.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist clients to enroll with payer services. The Contractor shall;

2.8,

28.2

Assess clients for probable eligibility for public or private insurance, such as
Medicaid; the New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP); and
Qualifled Health Plans available through the Marketplace.

Assisl clients with enroliment with the appropriate payer. Assistance shall
include, but not be limited to:

2.8.2.1. Providing one-on-one support to clients throughout the enroliment
process.

2.8.2.2. Providing clarification on information that needs to be provided to
the payer agency to ensure enroliment can be completed by the
chent.

289. The Contractor shall provide Continuous Recovery Monitoring services to clients who
are not currently receiving Continuous Recovery Moniloring services through a
Department-contracted SUD treatmant provider. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1.

29.2.

293
294,
295,

Granila Pathways

Afttempt to contact each client a minimum of three {3) times over the course
of one week. The Contractor shall:

29.1.1. Attempt contact by telephone at a reasonabie time when the client
would normally be available.,

- 2912, Attempt a second contact, as necessary, by telephone al a

reasonable time when the client would normally be avallable no
sooner than 2 days and no later than 3 days after the first attempt
In Section 2.9.1.1.

2913, Attempt a third conlact, as necessary, by telephone at a
reasonable time when the client would normally be available, no
sooner than 2 days and no later than 3 days after the second
attempt in Section 2.9.1.2.

2.9.1.4. Not exceed twalve (12) attempts in a thirty {30) day period.
Contact clients as frequently as weekly and no less frequently than:

29.2.1, 3 months post-discharge from the last treatment service (60120
days post dischame).

2.9.2.2. 6 months post-discharge from the last treatment service (150-210
days post discharge).

2.9.23. 12 months post-discharge from the last treatment service (330-
3890 days post discharge).

Inquire on the status of each client's recovery.
Identify any client needs.
Assist the client with eddressing the needs identified in Section 2.9.4.

Exhibit A - Scopa of Services Contracior lniualz(k
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2.10.

2.96. Provide early intervention to clients who have relapsed or whose recovery
is at risk, as identified in Section 2.9.4, and record the same.

29.7. Complete the clienl follow-up in WITS within 3 days of each completed
contact identified in Section 2.9.2.

The Contractor shall enter dient discharge information into WITS within 3 days of
client discharge.

3. Data and Reporting Roquirements

3.1.  The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Time lapses for services including, but not limiled to:
3.1.1.1. Initial client contact to screening
3.1.1.2. Screening to evaluation
3.1.1.3. Evaluation to interim services
3.1.1.4. Evaluation to regular services
3.1.2. Type of payer enroliment assessment and/or assistance provided, as
described in Section 2.7.

32. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports identifying SUD treatment and peer
recovery support services providers with whom Memorandums of Understanding
have been executed o provide contracted services. Reports shall include, but not be
limited to:

3.21. Name, location, and contact information of the provider,
3.2.2. Specific services provided by the provider.

3.3. The Confractor shall provide monthly reports that identify specific marketing activities
conducted as required in Section 2.3. Reports shall include, but are not limited 1o:
3.3.1. Types of marketing materais developed.

3.3.2. Venues whete malerials are displayed and/or availabie for hand out,
3.3.3.  Methods of marketing delivery.
3.3.4. A planfor marketing that will be conducted in the following month.

" 34. The Contractor shall comply wilh the reporting requirements listed in Section 3.0 in
accordancs with the following schedule, with tha first raport dus on the first of the
month following 90 days afler approval by Govermnor and Executive Council:

34.1. Three (3) month follow-ups completed for all clients wih a discharge date
prior to March of 2017.
34.2. Six({6) month follow-ups completed for ali clients with a discharge date prior
to January of 2017.
3.43. Twelve (12) month folow-ups complaeted for all clients with a discharge date
prior fo July of 2016.
Granite Pathways Exhibit A ~ Scope of Sarvices Comractor tats L
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4. Minimum Performance Maasures

4.1.

The Contractor shall comply with Continuous Recovery Monitoring contacts
described in Section 2.9, as follows:

4.1.1. Twenty-five percent (25%) of discharged clients shall be contacted three {3)

months after discharge.

4.1.2. Ten percent (10%) of discharged clients shall be contacted (6) months after
discharge.

4.1.3. Five percent {5%) of discharged clients shall be contacted twelve (12)
months after discharge.

5. Deliverables

5.1,

5.2

53.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

The Contractor shall submit for Department approval, within 30 days from the
contract effective date, an outreach activity plan for each region covered, for all
activities described in Section 2.3, including time frames.

The Contractor shall provide a sample of all marketing materals to the Depariment
within three (3) days of developing the materials described in Section 2.3.

The Contractor shall submit for Department approval, within 30 days from the
effective date of this contract, an information channels plan for each region covered,
for all activities described in Section 2.4, including timeframes.

The Contractor shall respond to all requests for information described in Section 2.4
within 24 hours of receiving the requests.

The Contractor shall ensure screening appointments described in Section 2.5 are
available within 48 hours of receiving clients’ requests for services.

The Contractor shall ensure all client saervices provided through this contract are
documented and/or recorded within three (3) days of providing the service.

6. Liquidltad Damages

6.1.

6.2,

6.3.

The Contractor and the Department agree that the WITS shall be the source of
record with data polls taking place on the tenth (10™) day of the month, beginning
with August 10, 2016.

The Contractor and the Department agree that it will be extremely impracticable and
difficult to determine actual damages that the Department will susiain in the event
that the vendor fails to maintain the required performance standards in Seclion 4,
Performance Standards, throughout the life of the contract. Any breach by the
Contractor will delay and disrupt the Department’s operations and cbligations and
lead to significant damages. Therefore, the parties agree thal the iquidated damages
as specified in the sections below are reasonable.

Assassment of liquidated damages shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, such other

remedies as may be available to the Department. Except and to the extent expressly

provided herein, the Department shall be entitled to recover liquidated damages

gumulatlvely under each section applicable to any given incident as described in
ection 6.8.

Grenite Pathways Exhibit A — Scope of Sarvices Contractor Inhiats: { 23
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64 The Department shall make all assessments of liquidated damages. Should the
Depariment determine that liquidated damages may, or will be assessed; the
Depariment shall notify the Contractor as specified in Section 7, Notifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages, below.

6.5. The Contractor shall submit a written Corrective Action Plan to the Depariment within
five (5) business days of receiving nolification as specified in Section 7, Notificatians
and Remedies for Liquidated Damages, for review and approval prior fo
implementation of the Corrective Action Plan.

6.6. The Contractor agrees that as determined by the Department, failure to provide
services that meet the performance standards In Seclion 4, Performance Standards,
shall result in in liquidaled damages as specified in Section 7, Notifications and
Remedies for Liquidated Damages. The Department’s decision fo assess liquidated
damages must be reasonable, based in fact and made in goad faith.

6.7. The remedies specified in Section- 7, Nofifications and Remedies for Liquidated
Damages, shall apply until the failure is cured or resulling dispute is resolved in the
Contractor's favor.

6.B. Liguidated damages in the amount of $500 per month for failure to meet the
Minimum Performance Measures identified in Section 4. It is agreed by the partlss
that damages may only be assessed by the Department related to Section 4 above
and that the amount of damages is limited to the amounts delineated in this Section
6.8 and that no other liquidated damages may be assessed.

6.9. The amount of lquidated damages assessad by the Depariment to the Contractor
shall not exceed the price limitation In Form P-37, General Provisions, block 1.8,
Price Limitation.
7. Notifications and Remedies for Liquidated Damages.

7.1, Prior fo the imposition of liquidated damages or any other remedies under this
Contract, including temination for breach, the Depariment shall lssue writlen notica
of remedies that shall include, as applicable:

7.1.1. A citation to the Contract provision violated.
7.1.2.  The remedies la be applied and the date the remedies shall be imposed.

7.1.3.  The basis for the Department's determination that the remedies shall be
imposed.

7.14. A requestfor a Comective Action Plan,

7.4.5. The timeframe and procedure for the Coniractor to dispute the
Depariment's determination. The Contractors dispute of liquidated
damages or remedies shall not stay the effective date of the proposed
liquidated damages or remedies.

7.1.6.  If the failure is not resolved within the cure period, liquidated damages may
be imposed retroactively to the date of failure to perform and continue until
the fadure is cured or any resulting dispute is resolved in the Contractor's
favor.

Granite Pathways Exhibit A — Scope of Services Contractor Initials;
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7.2.  In connection with any action taken or decision made by the Department with respect
to this Contract, within ninety (90) days following the action or decisions, the
Contractor may protest such action or decision by the delivery of a notice of protest
to the Depariment and by which the Contractor may protest said action or decision
and/er request an informal hearing with the Direclor of the Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services.

7.2,

7.2.2

71.23.

724

7.2.5.

Granite Pathways

5$5-2017-BDAS-01-REGIO-01

The Contractor shall provide the Department with an explanation of its
position protesting the Department's action or decision.

The Director shall determine a time that is mutually agreeable to the parties
during which they may present their views on the disputed issues. it is
understood that the presentation and discussion of the disputed issues will
be informal in nature.

The Director shail provide written notice of the time, format and location of
the presentation.

At the conclusion of the presentations, the Director shall consider all
evidence and shall render a written recommendafion as soon as
practicable, but in no event more than thity {30) calendar days after the
conclusion of the presentation.

The Director may appoint a designee to hear and determine the matter,

Exhibil A — Scope of Services Contractor lniﬁais:_@:
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Method and Conditions Pracedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contracior an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with general and federal funds. Dapariment access to suppaiting
funding for this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance {CFDA) (https:#www.cfda.qov) #93.959 U.S. Depanment of Health
and Human Services; Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration;
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse; Substance Abuse
Block Grant (SABG).

R The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and indirect
costs to provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit 8-1,
Budget.

4, Payment for-services provided in accordance with Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be
made as follows:

4.1. Payments shall be made an cost reimbursement basis only, for aliowable costs,
expenses and fees in accordance with Exhibits B-1, Budget.

4.2. Aliowable costs and expenses shall nclude those expenses detailed in Exhibit B-1,
Budget.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices using invoice forms provided by the
Department.

4.4. The Contractor shall submit supporling documentation and required reports in
Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Data and Reporling Requirements, that
support evidence of aclual expenditures, in accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget for
the previous month by the tenth {10th) working day of the currert month.

4.5, The Contractor shall submit invoices for services outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services in accordance with budget line items in Exhibit B-1, Budget preferably by
e-mail on Department approved invoices to:

Finance Manager

Divisian of Behavioral Health

Department of Hoakth and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301

laurie.heath@dhhs nh.gov

7
Granite Pathways Exhitut B - Method and Conditiona Contractor Initiats ;(L—;
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5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

6. A final payment request shali be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form
P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, tha Contractor agrees that funding
under this Cantract may be withheld, in whole or in pan, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, orif
the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an 2mendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1, and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

9. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to aperate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.

Granite Pathways . Exhibit B - Method and Condtions. Contracior Inttials @ ——
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PECIAL PROVISION

Contractors Obligations: The Contraclor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contraclor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contracior for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of tha aforesaid covenants, the Contraclor hereby covenants and
agrees a3 follows.

1. Compiiznce with Federal and State Laws: if the Contracior is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individypals such eligibibty datermination shall be made in accordance with epplicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Dstermination: Eiigibifity determinalions shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribad by
the Depariment,

3. Documentztion: In addition to the determination forms required by the Depardment, the Contracior
shall maintain a data fie on each recipient of sevvices heraunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibilily determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Dapartment with all forma and documentation
regarding eligbilly determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearirigs: The Contracior understands that all applicants for services hereundar, a2 well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covananis and agrees ihat all applicants for services shall be parmitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of hissher right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuhties or Kickbacks: The Contracier agreas that if is a breach of this Contract o accept or
make a paymen, gratuity of offer of employment on behalf of the Contractof, any Sub-Contracior or
the State in ordar to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate thia Coniracl and any sub-contract or sub-agreement ¥ it is
determined that paymenta, graiuities or offers of employment of any kind were oftered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Paymants;: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, i is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder (o reimburse the Conlracior for costs incurred for
any purpose of for any services provided to any individual prior to the ENective Date of the Contract
and nc payments shall be made for expanses incumred by the Conlractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individuat applies for services or (except as otherwize provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is afigible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary comained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to chligate or require the Department {o purchase services
hereunder al a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor o ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. if at any time during the term of thi Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expendture Repon hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contracior has used
payments hereunder lo reimburse items of expense other than such gosts, of has received payment
in excess of such costs or in axcess of such rates charged by the Contracior to ineligible individuals
of other third party funders, the Department may alect to:

1.1, Renegotiate the rates for payment hensunder, in which event new retes shall be established;
7.2, Deduct g'am atny future payment to the Coniractor the amoum of any prior reimbursement in
axces’ of coats;

Extibi C — Spocial Provisions Contractty InRials ﬁ_l
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7.3, Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractar in which event failure to make
such repayment shell conslitute an Event of Defaull hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to detarmina the eligibilty of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Depatment for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Depariment to be ineligible for such sarvices at
any tme during the period of redention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibifty records specified above, the Contraclior
covenants and agrees to maintain the following racords during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fmca! Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

" and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contrast, and all
income recefved or colected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordanca with accounting procadures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to includa, without imitation. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidenca of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and olher records requested or required by the

* Department. .

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmant, aitendance or visit records for each recipiert of
services duning the Conract Peried, which records shatl include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to detarmine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submittad to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where approgriate and as prescribad by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of sarvices.

9. Audit: Contractor shail submit an annual audit to the Depariment within 60 days after the ciose of the
agency fiscal year. it is recommended that the report be prepared in acecardance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Proft Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US Generat Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance sudits. )

9.1. Auwdit and Review: During the term of this Cantract and the period fur retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shail have access o all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilties: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Conlract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shail be held liabie for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, afl payments made under the .
Coniract to which exception has been taken or which have been disaliowed because of such an
exception,

10. Cenfidentlality of Records: All iformation, reports, and records maintained hareunder or colflected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be configential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regutations of
the Depastment regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract, and provided further, that
tho use or disdosure by any party of any infermation concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilkies with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohbited except on written consent of tha recipient, his
attomey of guardian.

Exhedit C — Special Provisons Conbracior Inikials CL""-
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1.

12.

13

14

15.

16.
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Notwithstanding anything to the centrary cortained herein the covenants and conditions canlained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatscever.

Reports: Fiscal and Stalistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following repors at the following

{imes # requested by the Depardment.

11.1. Interim Financial Repons: Written inlerim financial reports containing a detailed description of
ail casts and non-aliowable expenses incurred by the Contractor ta the date of the repont and
containing such other information 25 shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reporis shall be submitted an the form
designated by the Depariment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final repor! shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Gontract. The Final Repori shall ba in a form salisfactory to the Depariment and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objsctives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Complation of Services: Disaliowance cof Costs. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limiation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the panties hereunder (except such abligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract andfor
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, pravided however, that if, upon review of the
Fmnal Expenditure Repod the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its diseretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or {o recover such sums from the Contracior.

Credits; All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during ar resulting from the performance of the services of the Cantract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this {repori, documnent elc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in pad
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Heakh and Human Services.

Pricr Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced ot
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution ¢r use. Tha DRHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, inchuding, but not imited ta, brochures, resource direclories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, of reports. Contractor shail net reproduce any materials produced under the contract withoul
pricr written appraval from DHHS.

Openation of Facllities: Compllance with Laws and Regulationa: In the operation of any facifities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ali laws, arders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractcr with respect to the
opefation of the fatilty or the provision af the servicas at such facifty. if any governmental license ot
permit shall be required for the gperation of the said facility or the performance ¢f the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license o« parmit, and will at all times comply with the terms snd
conditions of each such licanse or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contrector hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the faciities akall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements af the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and ohall be in confarmnance with local buitding and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employmaent Opportunity Plan {(EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opporiunity Plan (EEQP) to the Otfice for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if & has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. |f the recipient receives 325,000 or maore and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maimain a current EEQP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the

- OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving iess than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient wil provide an
EEQP Centification Form o the OCR certifying it is nol required to submit or maintain an EEQP. Non.-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and madical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required 1o submit a certification farm to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cartification Forms are available at. hitp:/Awww.ojp.usdoj/abortiocs/pdfs/cert.pdf,

17. Umited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national onigin
discrimingtion includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title V1 of the Chvil
Rights Act of 1964, Confractors must take reasonable steps to engure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs. .

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistlablowsr Protections: The
following shall apply 1o all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 46
CFR 2.101 {currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(8) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject 10 the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contracior employes whistieblower protections established at

41 U.5.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Dafense Authorization Acl for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

'

{b) The Contractor shall inform its esnployees in wriling, in the predomirant language of the workfarce,
of employee whislleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S5.C. 4712, as described in section
3,908 of ihe Federal Acquisition Regulation,

(¢} The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplifisd acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform contain health care services or functions far efficiency or convenience,
but the Cantractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
Subconiracting, the Contractor shall avakuate the subcontractor's ability to parform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsiblities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegetion or imposing sanclions if
the subcontrectors performance is nol adequate. Subcontraciors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contracior and the Conlractor is responsible to ensure subcontraclor compliance
with these conditions.

When the Contractor delegales a function 1o a subcontractor, the Contractar shah do the following:
19.1. E;dfum: the prospective subcontractor's abildy o perform the activities, before delegating
unction
19.2.  Have awritlen agreement with the subcontractor that specifios activities and reporting
respansinlities and how sanctions/revocation will ba managed # the subcontroctor's
pesfomance is not sdequate
18.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identitying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
185, DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement ara identified, the Centractor shalt
take corrective action.

DEFINTTIONS
As used m the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect tems of expense determined by the Department to b
ahowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principle s established in accondance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and corders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Hurian Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Conlractor Manual which is
entitied "Financial Management Guidelines® and which contains the reguiations goveming the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: if applicable, shal mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
requrad by the Department and containing a description of the Senvices to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contrac! and setting forth
the total cost and seurces of ravenue for each sarvice to be provided under tha Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is 1o pravide to eligible individuais hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified aclivity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Conlract. .

FEDERALISTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, elc. are
referred (o in the Cortract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulalions, elc. as
they may be amended of revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared bry the NH Dapariment of Administrative
Services conlaming a compilation of all requiations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administralive Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations profmulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Cantract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these sérvices.

Extabi C ~ Special Pravisions Contracton Indisls @1""
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New Hasmpshira Dapartment of Health end Human Services

Exhibit C-1

BEVRIONS TR GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.  Subparegraph 4 of the Genersl Provisions of this contract, Conditiona! Noture of Agreement, is
repiaced &3 oiows:

4

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithetanding sny provigion of this Agmement lo the contrary, all obligations of the Stale
hersundasr, including without limitetion, the continuance of payments, in whole or in parnt,
ungder this Agreament am contingent upon continued @ppropristion or avallability of funds,
nclding any subsoquent changes (0 the appropriation or aveilsbdity of funds affecked by
&ny state or fadera! logisiztive or executive action that reduces, elimingtes, or ctherwise

" modifies the sppropriation or avaiability of funding for this Agreemaent and the Scope of

Sarvices provided in Exhibil A, Scope of Sarvices, in whole or In part. In no ovent ahafl the
State be lable for any paymants harcunder in excess of appropriated or availcbie funds. In
the event of  reduction, termination or modification of appropriatsd or evailable funds, the
State shal have tha right to withhold payment untl such funds become gvaikable, if aver. The
State shal heve the right 'o reduce, teminata or medify sarvices under this Agresmant
immediately upon giving the Contrctor notice of such reduction, temmination or modification.
The Stxie shzil not be required o transfer funds rom any other source of sccount into the
Accouniis) identified In block 1.6 of the Ganers! Provisions, Account Numbsr, of any other
sccount, in the avent funds are reducad or unaveilabie.

2. Subparegmph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
fotiowing tangusge;

101

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

The State may torminsie tha Agreemant at any time for any reason, at tha sols discretion of
the State, 30 days aftor giving the Contrector written nolice that the Steie is exarciging is
option 1o erminato the Agreement.

in the event of sarly termingtion, the Contractor shaf, within 15 days of notice of earty
tarminstion, deveiop snd submit o the State o Transition Plan for sarvices under the
Agreement, including but not Emited to, igentifying the present and future noeds of cBents
recaiving servicas under the Agresment and estabilshes a process (o meat thooe noeds,

Tha Contractor shall Afly cooporate with the Stale end shall prompty provide detailed
informstion to support the Transition Plan incuding, but not limited to, any informaton of
datz requesind by the Siete roisted to the termination of the Agroement and Transition Plan
end shall provide ongeing communication gnd revisions of the Transition Plan to the State o
requestsd.

in the event that services under tha Agreement, including bul not limited to clisnts recaiving
s2rvices under the Agresment cre frantitioned to having services deliversd by another entity
ncluding controcted providers or the State, the Contrector shall provide & process for
uninmrupled delivery of sarvices in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall estzblish 8 method of notifying clients and other affectsd individuals
sboyt the transiion. The Contractor shgll indude the proposed communicetions In its
Trangition Plgn submitted to the Stole as described above.

3 Tho Dopartment restrvas the rght to renaw the Contract for up to two {2) sdditional yearm, subject
to the continuad sveilsbiity of lunds, satisfectory parformance of servicas and approvel by he
Govemnor snd Executive Council.

CReeTI071)
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Exhibit D

CATION REGARD F KP ENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Acl of 1988 {Pub. L. 100690, Tile V, Subtitie D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et g8q.), and further ngrees to have the Conlrector's representative, acs identifiad in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions executs the foliowing Certification:

ALTERMNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAHN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Thia certification i required by lhe regulations implsmenting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workpiace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-660, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 &t seq.). The January 31,
1839 regulations were smended and published ss Part Il of the May 25, 1980 Federal Register {pages
21681-21691), and require cedification by grantees (and by inference, sub-gronteas and sub-
contraciors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that s grantea (and by inference, sub-grantess and sub-contractors) that i b State
may alect to make one cerification to the Dapariment in each federal fiscal year in lisu of cotificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The carlificale sel outbelow is a
materia] represaniation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the ogency swards the grant. False
cerification or viokation of the cerlification shall be grounds for suspansion of payments, suspension Or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send itlo:

Commissionar

NH Depariment of Heaith end Human Sarvices
129 Pieasant Street,

Concotd, NH 03301-6505

1. The granlee certifies that it will or will continus to provide a drug-frea workplace by:
Publishing a stalement notifying employees that the untawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controled substance is prohibited in the grantea's
wotkplace and specifying the aclions thet will be 1aken againat employeas for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-frea awareness program to inform employees about
1.21. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantes’s policy of maintaining a drug-frea workplace;

1.23. Anyavailable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penglies that may be imposed upan employess for drug sbuse viclations
occurring in ihe workplace;

1.3. Making it o requirement thal sach employee 1o be sngaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the stalement required by paragraph (s);

1.4. Nolifying tha employae in the etatement requirad by paragreph (a) that, as @ condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wil
1.4.1. Abide by tha tarms of tha statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of hiz or her conviction for a violstion of a criminol drup

lm:pccurrim in tha workptace no tater than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the egency in writing. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employes or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviclion.
Employen of convicted employeos must provide notice, induding position tite, to ovesry grant
officet on whose grant activity the convicled employee was working, unisss the Faderal egency

ExhibR D - Cerication mgaeraing Drug Free mw“&
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New Hlmpamre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such nolices, Notice shall includa the
kisniffication number(s) of each affectad grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any emgloyee who s so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnal action egainst such an employee, up 1o and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amendsad; or
16.2. Requiring such amployee to participate satisfactorily in & drug abuse assistance or
rehabiftation program approved for such purposes by a Faderal, State, or local heaith,
law enforcament, or athar appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in tha space providad below the site(s) for the perfformance of work done in
connaction with the specific grant,

Place of Parformance (strest acdress, ciy. county, state, 2ip code) {list each location)

Check [ ¥ thera are workplaces on file that are ot identified here.

Contr A Pty
/./"\—/
o) e 7
Dala Name: (vl Shng ML Mabiun

ij: "l_'}' (1;,(‘['\ [T LU
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Hew Humpshire Department of Health and Human Sarvicos
Exhibit E

ERTIFICATION R N BBYl

The Contracior identified in Saction 1.3 of the Generz! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 L.8.C. 1352, and furthar agrees to have the Contraclor's represantative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisiona execute the foliowing Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program coverad):
“Temporary Assistanca to Needy Famikies under Title [V-A
*Child Suppont Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
“Medicaid Program under Tile XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Tithe VI

*Child Care Development Biock Grant under Title [V

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Fadaral sppropristad funds have been paid of will be paid by of on behaif of the undarsigned, to
any parson for influsncing or aftemnpting to influance an officer or emplioyee of any agency, 2 Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of @ Member of Congresa in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amandment, or
medification of any Federsl contract, grant, loan, or cocperative agreement (and by apecific mention
sub-graniee or sub-conlrador).

2. I any funds other than Federa! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or aitempting to influence an officer or employee of eny egency, » Member of Congress,
an officer or emplayeea of Congreas, or an employes of a Membes of Congress in connaction with this
Federal contract, grant, Joan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-gramee or sub-
contractor), the undersignod shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, altached and igentified a3 Standard Exhib#t £-.)

3. The undersignad shali requira that the language of this cartfication be included in the awand
documnent for sub-gwards at all tiers {including subcortracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
icans, end cooperative agreements) and that all sub-ecipients shall certify and disclose eccocdingly.

This cartification is 2 material represantation of fact upon which refiance was placed whan this transaction
was mede of entared info. Submission of this certification i a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposad by Section 1352, Tide 31, U.S. Code. Ary parson who faila to file the required
w&ﬁce!bnhﬁmn be subject to a civil panalty of not lesa than $10, not mare than $100,000 for
each such fature,

e

Dato
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New Hampahire Dopartiment of Health snd Human Services

Exhiblt F
CERT[FICAT REG D ENT, SUSPENSION
AND OT R IBILITY MATT

The Conlrecior identified in Saction 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Executiva Cffice of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmant,

Suspansion, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to heva the Contractor's

%mm' . a8 Kentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the fofowing
ion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting ihis proposal (contract), the prospedxvo primary participant is providing the
cedification set oul belowr.

2. The ingbilty of a person to provide the cartification required below will not necessarily resul in deniad
of participation in this covered transaciion. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it canno! provide the cerfification. The certificgtion or explanation will be

. considered in connection with the NH Department of Heath and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whethar to enter inlo this frensaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
paricipant to fumish a certification or an axplanation shall disqualfy such person from parﬁccpatm in
this transaction.

3. The cerification in this clauae is a material representation of fact upon which refiance was piaced
when DHHS delermined to enter info this tranaaction. if & ia later delermined that tha prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an efroneous cerlification, in addition to other remedies
avalable to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaclion for cause or defaul.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written nolice to the DHHS agency te
whoin this proposal (contract) is submitied if ot any tima the prospeciive primary participant leams
that its cartification was ereneous when submitted or has become erronecus by rezson of changed
cifcumatances.

5. The terms ‘covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” *lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” * person,” “primary coversd Uransaction,’ “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily exciuded ” as used in this clause, have the meanings sat out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of tha rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Pait 76. See the
attachad definttions.

6. The prospective primary pacticipant agreas by submitting this proposal (contract) thet, should the
proposed coverad transsction be entered into, # shall not knewingly enter into any lowerller covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declarad inefigible, or voluntarily axcluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unkess suthorized by DHHS.

7. The prospeciive primary participant furthar ogrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regard:ng Debarmant, Suspension, Insligibiity and Voluntary Exchusion -
Lower Tiar Cavered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in ali lower fier covered
transaclions and in afl soficitations for lower tier covered hansactions.

B. A parlicipant in a coverad transaction may rely upon a canification of a prespective particlpant in a
lower tier coversd transaction that it i not debarred, suspendad, ineligible, or invotuarily excluded
from the covared transacticn, uniess it knows that the certification is smoneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibilty of its principsis. Enach
participant may, but is not required 1o, check the Nanprocurement Ligt (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the forsgoing shall be construed 1o require eslablishment of a systam of records
in order to render in good fzith the ceriffication required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhbl F — Cartification Regarcing Dobgrmant, Suspension c«maruu-_é:__
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information of 2 participant Is not required to excend that which is nommally possessed by & prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for trensaclions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participand in a
cevered tansaction knowingly enters into a lower fier covered tranagetion with a persan who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volunterlly axcluded from particlpation [n this transaction, in
addition 10 other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this iransaction
for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary parficipant certifies 10 the best of s knowledge and belief, thal il and #s
principals:

11.1. are not preaently debamed, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inebgible, or
voluntarily sxcluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency;

11.2. have not within a theee-year perind preceding this proposel (contract) bean convicted of or hed
a civil judgment rendered against them for commissian of fraud or & criminal offense in
comaction with obtaning, ettempting to obtain, or performing 2 public (Federal, State or local)
fransaction or a contract under & public ransaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes of commission of embazziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making faise statemants, or receiving stolen property,

11.3, zre nol preaently indicled for otherwise crimmafly or ¢ivily charged by @ governmenta entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of eny of the offenses enumerated in paragraph () (b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within g three-year periad procoding this application/propotal had ons or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) lerminated for cause or defautl.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the sialements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submiting this lower tisr proposal (contract), the prospective lowet tier participant, as
defined in 45 CER Part 76, certifies to the bast of its knowedge and belie! that i end its principals:
13.1. are not presantly debarred, suspended, proposed for debammert, declared ineligible, of
voluntarily exchided from participation in this transaction by any lederal department or 2gency.
132. whem the prospective Jower tief paricipant I unaible to cartify to any of the above, swch
prespective participant shall attach an explznation o this proposal (contract).

4. The prospective lower lier participant further agrees by submilting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clsuse entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibdity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Coversd Transactions,” withoul modification in all lower lier covered
transactions and i all solickstions for lower tier covared transactions.

N X -Pk[h\-.!c-.j'S
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Naw Hampshira Department of Hagith and Human Services

Exhlbit G
CERTIFICAT COMPLI £ WITH UIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED OR TIONS AND
BLO T

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contracior will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
tha delivery of services or banefits. on the bas's of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients o producae an Equal Employment Opporlunity Plan,

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 {42 U.8.C. Section 5672(b}) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sale Streets Acl. Recipients of federal funding under this
stafute are prohibited frem discriminating, either in employment practices or in the deiivary of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. Tha Act includes Equal

" Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; :

- he Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in 8ny program or activity);

- the Rehaniltation Act of 1973 (29 L.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Fedsral financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the defivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.5.C. Seciions 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
govermment serfvices, public accommodations, commercial faciities, and transponiaiion,

- tha Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Seclions 1681, 1683, 1685-88), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6§106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28CF.R. gt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R: pt. 42
{L..S. Department of Justice Regulations -~ Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opporiunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the lawa for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
Criaria for partnerships with faith-basad and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 38 (L.S. Depertment of Justice Regulations ~ Equal Treatment for Fath-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. 54712 and Tha Nalional Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Empioyee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisai for cenain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracls.

The certificate 324 oul below is a material represeniation of fact upon which feliance is placed when the
agency awards the granl. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
m of payments, suspansion or tarmination of grants, or government wide suspension or
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State adminisirative agency makes a finding of
discrimination alter a due process hearing on the grounds of race, colar, religion, national ofigin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipieni will forward a copy of the finding lo the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Depariment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlractor's
representativa as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follawing
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this propesal {contract) the Conlractor agrees 1o comply with the provisions
indicated above.

bl25 e
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, aiso known as the Pro-Children Act of 1954
(Act), requires that smoking not ba permitted in any portion of any indoor facilty owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or reguiarly for the provision of heakh, day care, education,
of library sarvices to chiddren under the 2ge of 18, if the services ame funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Steta or locel govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or ban guarenles. Tha
low does not epply to chiiren's sefvicas provided in privete residences, faciitias funded solsty by
Medicere or Medicaid funds, and portions of facifities used for inpetient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
io comply with the provisions of the Jaw may resull in the imposition of a ¢ivil monstary penahty of up to
$1000 per dey and/or the impoesition of en administrative compfiance order on the responsible antity.

Tha Contraclor identified in Saction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contracior’s
representative a3 identifiad in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 1o executs the following
cestification:

1. By signing and submitting this conlract, the Contractor agrees o make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227, Part C, known as tha Pro-Chidren Act of 1994,

el
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Exhibit |

B
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genaral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Poriability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associales. As defined hereln, "Business
_Assoclate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected heatth information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Servicos.

n Definjtions.

a. “Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach® in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tite 45, Code
. of Federal Regulations. ’. .

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Coda of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set”shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 184.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501,

f. “Health Care Qperations™ shall have the same meaning as the tamm *health care operations” .
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act” means the Heaith Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXJll, Subtitie D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089,

h. *HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountabdity Act of 1896, Public Law
104-181 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments theneto.

i. “Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as 2 personal representative in accordance with 45.
CFR Section 164.501(g). :

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individualy Identifiable Heath
Information al 45 CFR Parts 160 and 184, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Haalth and Human Services.

k. “Pmotacted Heatth Information” shall have the same maaning es the term “protected heatth
irformation” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited 1o the information crested of received by

Business Associale from of on behal of Coverpd Entity.
Vit Exhibd | Conractor inigald :c j&-_
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"Required by aw" shail have the same meaning as the term *required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. "Secrefary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Pant 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsacured Protectad Health Information” means protecied heatth information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protectsd health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is daveloped or endorsed by
Iaa*dandards developing organization that is accredited by tha American National Standards
nstitute,

itions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established undar 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 184, as amended from time to tima, and the |
HITECH
Act

B ocla and Disciosure of ted Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disciosa, maintain or transmit Protecied Health
Information {PHI) except as reasonably necessary to pravide the services cutlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, Funther, Business Assaociate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall nat use, disclose, maintaln or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Assoclate may use or disclose PHL
L For the proper managemsnt and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the tarms set forth in paragraph d, below; of
til. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is penmitted under the Agreement to disclose PHIto a
third party, Business Associata must obtaln, prhor to making any such disclosure, (i)
reascnable assurances from tho third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Noftification
Rulgs of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent i has obtalned
knowiadge of such breach.

The Busineas Associate shall not, uniess such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreament, disclose any PHI in responseto a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Cavered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate refief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

V204 Exhibit | Contracior Inftials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ali
remadies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additiona) restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures of security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shail be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In viclation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

] ons c ] ocizte.

The Business Associate shal notify tha Covered Enlity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above gituations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to-

o The nature and exient of the profected health information invoived, inchuding the
typas of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protacted health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protacted heatth information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated,

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings cf the risk assessment in wriling to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with 2l sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records ralating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, of created or
reczived by the Business Aszociata on behal! of Coverad Emity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. ’

Business Associate shall require al of its business associates that recalve, usa of have
acciss to PH! under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the usa and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (ff. The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agresments with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving EHI

Eahiba | Coniraciod infisis
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pursuani to this Agreemant, with rights of enforcemeant and indemnification from such
business associates who shail be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
cantract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected heatth information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a2 writlen raquest from Covered Enitity,
Busineas Associate shall make avaitable during normal busiress hours at its offices all
records, books, agreemants, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI 1o the Coverad Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Enfity to detarmine
Business Associate's comphance with the lerms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10} business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an

. amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Desighated Record

Set, the Business Associate shall make such FHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHi and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of recelving a writien requast from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Busmess Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHi in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Assaciate shall within two (2)
businass days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shail have the
responsidility of responding to forwarded requests. Howewer, if forwarding the
individual's requast to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to viclate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shallinsteatt respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Waithin ten {10) business days of tarmination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agresmant, and shall not retain any coples or badk-up tapes of such PHL. If retum or
destructien i not feasible, or tha disposition of the PHI has been otherwise 2greed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and fimit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purpases that make the retum or daestruction infeasible, for so long as Business

Exhia | Conrector infasls
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(8)

(6)

Y

Assgciate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of C

Covered Enlity shall nofify Business Associate of any changes or mitation{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Praclices provided o individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Secticn
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shal) promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission. provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 1684.508.

Covered antity shail promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164,522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosura of
PHI.

Terminatlon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard ferms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Aasociate of the Business Associate
Agreement set farth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an oppoertunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe spedified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Coverad Entity shall report the
viclation to the Secretary.

Mizcellaneous
Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise definad herein,

shall have the same meaning ag thase terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amendad
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended Lo Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. _

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
nocessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as s necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, 2nd applicable federal and siate [aw.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that ft has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Inferpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shali be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. Zé

ExhibR | Corntracior irflals
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e, Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance ks held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
tarms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
dastruction of PH), extenslons of the protections of the Agreement in section {3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

IN WITNESS WHERECF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit [.

C\ ‘ﬁ\l e \.}/.‘;?LLt b \v'qt‘u_,\l'

T UTd

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

- e
\C-ﬁ'\a... S 12 % Cl"'is%m O ehan
Name of Autherized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
’B:/,Zr_ t‘"‘/- fprf%-ﬂ{’r\" - (a0
Titke of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
A ¢f24] 18
Date o Date
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CATION REGARD I ERAL FUN ACCOUNTA AND T PA| Y
ACT {FFATA} CO CE

The Federal Funding Accountehility and Transperency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardses of individual
Federal grants equal to or groater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
daia mlaied lo execulive compensation and essociated first-tiar sub-grants of $25,000 or mone. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modificstions resuft in a total award equsl to or over
$25.000, the eward is subjact to the FFATA reporting requirements, o of the date of the awerd.

In accordanca with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subeward and Execytive Compensation Infermation), the
Depariment of Health and Humen Services (DHHS) must report the following infocmation for any
subzward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporling requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of sward
Funding egency
MNAICS code for confracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Awerd tille descriptive of the purpase of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unkque identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compengation gnd names of the top five executives if:
10.1. Mo than 80% of annual gross revenues ans from the Federal govermment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensztion informalion is not aready available through reporting to the SEC.

areNOmMAWwN -

o

Prima grant recipients myst submit FFATA required dala by the end of the motith, plus 30 days, in which
the award or sward amendmant is made.

The Comtracior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabilily end Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Raporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Infarmetion), and further agrees
to have the Contractors representative, 23 identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generel Provigions
execute the following Cartificetion:

The below nomed Contractor ogroes 1o provide neaded information ss outlined above to the NH
Department of Haah and Human Services and to comply with all spplicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountabilty and Transparency Act.

Con e : ke 'Puth.\w-u‘r

Dm(,[lq[(g ﬂ—%ﬂ’

Name: (i, IShnt Aéibahe
e Doodinfe Cho

Accountabiity Arxl Tramsparency Act (FFATA) Complance
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EORM A

As the Contracior idontdfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cerlify that the responses to the
below lsted questions are true and sccurate.

1.
2

The DUNS number for your entity is: ﬁl? S?'—"? 707 .

In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
feceive (1) BO petcent or more of your ennual gross revenue in U,S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
foans, grants, sub-grants, andior cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federsl contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or

cooperat mania?
K NO

¥ the answer to #2 abowe is NO, stop here

YES

if the answer to #2 sbove is YES, please answerihe following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the exscutives In your
business or arganization through periodic reports filed under saction 13(a) or 15(d) of tho Secutities
Enggngekd of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780{d)) or section 6104 of the intemnal Revenus Code of
19 .

NO YES

—————————

Hthe answer to 23 above is YES, stop hers
if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highty compensatad officers in your business or
organaation are o follows:

Rame:; Amount;
Name: Amount:
Kame: Amount:
Name: Amount:

t

Name: Amount:

Exhibit J - Certiication Reganiing the Federal Funding Cmmm,@_\_
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